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Where Doctors Get Connected

Fellow Shareholders,

I am proud to report to you our company’s results for 2002. I am very pleased with the financial and
operational accomplishments we have made during the year, despite the economic challenges faced by us and
our industry. Our financial condition has improved dramatically, and we have realized a number of exciting
accomplishments.

Cash more than tripled in 2002, increasing from $13 million at the beginning of the year to over $39 million at
year end. At the same time, we reduced our debt by $12 million, from $31 million to $19 million, invested
$18 million in research and product development, and repurchased 1.9 million shares of our common stock for
$6 million. Moreover, we ended the year with working capital of $27 million, compared to a deficit at
December 31, 2001.

Despite the effects of a weakened economy, particularly relating to the IT-spending environment, our revenues
rose 7% to $115 million. We had net income of $24 million, or 21% of revenues, compared to a net loss of
$(28) million for 2001.

Strategic partnerships, increased marketing activities, expanded sales efforts, and our research and product
development initiatives have delivered impressive results in sales. For the year, our software and system sales
increased by 37% and we saw an increasing number of orders from new clients. I am particularly pleased with
the sales results of our emergency medicine clinical systems, our Java and browser-based radiology
information system RadConnect® RIS, and our integrated document imaging system Replica™.

Research and product development has succeeded in a number of areas. HIPAA-related programming and
testing was completed, and we have received certification from Claredi Corporation, an independent HIPAA
EDI testing firm. In 2002, we released RadConnect® RIS, our first system which runs on our Java and
browser-based, multi-tiered platform, Ingenuity™. Significant development activities of other Ingenuiry-based
applications were accomplished in 2002, and we expect to begin bringing these applications to market by the
end of 2003 and in 2004.

I am truly excited about the future for VitalWorks. Our strong financial condition, outstanding product
offerings, and exceptional staff have produced excellent results considering the economic downturn we
witnessed in 2002. I remain optimistic as we introduce additional product offerings to the mix and we continue
to build-out our sales force.

Our management team and our staff are unwavering in our commitment of delivering an increasingly
attractive value proposition to the healthcare market. This should position VitalWorks to yield revenue growth
and profitability for fellow shareholders. I thank you for your support and confidence.

Sincerely,

Joseph M. Walsh
Chairman of the Board, President & CEQ

April 30, 2003

As you read our 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K, please be sure to review Part I, Item 1 for an
important discussion about forward-looking statements and risk factors that may affect future results.
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Item 1. Business

General

VitalWorks Inc. is a leading provider of information management technology and services targeted to
healthcare practices and organizations throughout the United States. We provide IT-based solutions for
general medical practices and have specialty-specific products and services for practices such as radiology,
anesthesiology, ophthalmology, emergency medicine, plastic surgery, and dermatology. We also offer enter-
prise-level systems designed for large physician groups and networks. Cur range of software solutions, which
include workflow features related to patient encounters, automate the administrative, financial, and clinical
information management functions for physicians and other healthcare providers. We provide our clients with
ongoing software support, implementation, training, electronic data interchange, or EDI, services for patient
billing and claims processing, and a variety of Web-based services.

We were incorporated in Delaware in November 1996. Prior to July 10, 1997, we conducted no significant
operations and generated no revenue. On July 10, 1997, we completed our initial public offering. During the
remainder of 1997 through 1999, we completed acquisitions of 16 medical companies. In addition, during the
period July 10, 1997 through 2000, we acquired 19 companies that made up our former dental software
business.

On March 5, 2001, we spun-off our dental software business through a pro rata distribution to our
shareholders of all the outstanding common stock (the “Distribution™) of our previously wholly-owned
subsidiary, PracticeWorks, Inc. (“PracticeWorks™). As a result of the Distribution, PracticeWorks became an
independent public company operating what was formerly our dental business, which included the dental,
orthodontic, and oral and maxillofacial surgery business lines. Accordingly, PracticeWorks has been accounted
for as discontinued operations. All information contained in this report, unless otherwise indicated, has been
restated to reflect the Distribution. We relocated our executive offices to Connecticut and began doing
business as “VitalWorks” following the Distribution. The material terms of the Distribution are described
herein.

Endustry Background

Healthcare spending in the United States has risen dramatically over the past two decades, amounting to
approximately $1.3 trillion in 2000, according to the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, and is
expected to grow to $2.0 trillion in 2006. Federal and state governments, insurance carriers and other third-
party payors have taken actions to control these rising costs. As a result, physicians are under increasing
pressure to reduce costs and operate their practices more efficiently. One of the ways in which third-party
payors have managed rising costs has been to employ alternative reimbursement models to replace the fee-for-
service reimbursement model, which has been the traditional basis for payment for healthcare services. Such
alternative reimbursement models include managed care, fixed-fee, and capitated models of reimbursement.
The result of these generally more restrictive reimbursement models has been a dramatic increase in the
complexity of accounting, billing, and payment collection for healthcare services.

The privacy and security rules adopted by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996, or HIPAA, are also serving as a driver for expanded information management tools, especially in the
areas of clinical information. Practices will be required to ensure confidentiality of patient healthcare
information, and to better control access to this information.

In addition, physicians are under increased pressure to control the quality of the care they deliver. In
1999, the Institute of Medicine reported that up to 98,000 Americans die each year from preventable medical
mistakes experienced during hospitalization. Coalitions such as The Leapfrog Group have formed to help
ensure that consumers are properly informed to make the most educated decisions about the medical care they
need, and that physicians are practicing medicine at the highest possible levels of care and safety. A key factor
for a physician to achieve this level of care is the accuracy and availability of patient healthcare information.
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To address these challenges, healthcare providers are increasingly using information technology, includ-
ing practice management and clinical information systems. Practice management systems include a range of
software products and services for physicians and other providers of healthcare services. Most practice
management systems provide several common functions, including practice administration functions such as
patient scheduling, and financial functions such as insurance billing, patient billing and receivables manage-
ment. Clinical information systems include electronic medical records, clinical charting, electronic prescrib-
ing, patient tracking and patient workflow systems.

The continued evolution of information and telecommunication technologies has led to the development
of a variety of electronic tools that can be integrated with practice management systems, helping to improve
healthcare practices’ cash flow. Among these is EDI, which expedites the submission of healthcare insurance
claims to third-party payors and expedites the receipt of reimbursement. Paper claims require more time and
are significantly more expensive to prepare, file, and process than electronically submitted claims. EDI
transactions, on the other hand, can be processed directly with third-party payors or channeled through
processing clearinghouses at significantly lower costs to the provider and the payor. Because of these
significant cost savings, some payors are beginning to require practitioners to submit reimbursement claims
electronically. In addition, new regulations mandated by HIPAA require the industry to move to a single
electronic format accepted by all payors. We believe this will simplify the process of electronically exchanging
information and thereby enhance the utilization of electronic claim submission and open the doors to many
other types of EDI services, such as electronic remittance advice, determination of eligibility, claim status
checks, and referral authorizations.

Products and Services

We offer a wide range of practice management and clinical software products to healthcare providers in
targeted specialty markets. These products are designed to automate the administrative, financial, and clinical
information management functions of office-based physician practices, hospital-based physician practices, and
large healthcare enterprises, clinics and organizations.

Types of Products

Each of our products addresses the management of healthcare data in one or more of several different
areas. These areas include:

° Financial management, including patient billing, insurance processing, receivables and coliections
management.

o Administrative management, including appointment scheduling, patient registration, patient correspon-
dence, referral analysis, and document imaging and management.

o Clinical data management, including complete documentation of patient visits, prescription writing,
patient medical history, and treatment planning.

o EDI, including electronic processing of insurance claims and patient statements.

Targeted Specialties

In addition to addressing the needs of primary care and general medical practices and clinics, many of our
software products have been designed to address the specific needs of specialty practices. For example,
anesthesiologists are required to bill their services on the basis of time units, and radiologists require
specialized scheduling, film tracking, image delivery and workflow capabilities. Qur targeted specialties
include:

Hospital-based physician specialties:
o Radiology
o Anesthesiology




Enterprise-level groups:

» Large physician groups

* Emergency departments

o Physician networks

¢ Clinics

> Service bureaus

» Management Service Organizations
= Independent Physician Associations
Office-based physician specialties:

¢ Ophthalmology

e Dermatology

* Plastic Surgery

¢ Podiatry

Principal Products

Our principal products are the main practice management and clinical information products used by our
clients. Each principal product falls into one of two categories: “core” products or “classic” products. Qur core
products offer advanced functionality and operate with the latest generation of operating systems and hardware
platforms offered by us. In addition, core products are the primary products offered to our targeted practice
areas. Classic products, while continuing to offer adequate functionality, typically lack advanced practice
management features and are not designed for the latest generation of operating systems. We actively market
eight core products and support 20 classic products. We believe that there is a significant opportunity to
provide system upgrades to those clients using classic and other non-core products by providing a migration
path to our core products. While we primarily market our core products, we will continue to provide customer
support for our classic products until we determine that it is no longer cost effective or practically possible to
do so. We are actively promoting the migration of classic product clients to newer products.

We believe that while desktop systems will continue to be based primarily on some version of the
Microsoft Windows family of operating systems, a significant number of physician, patient, and office
functions will require Internet connectivity and demand a more platform-neutral approach. Consequently, our
research and development efforts for new products are centered around building platform-independent
applications using proven technologies.

Ancillary Products

In addition to our principal practice management and clinical products, we offer a variety of ancillary
products. While some of these products may operate on a stand-alone basis, these are typically add-on
modules to our principal products. Ancillary products allow us to leverage our client base for additional sales
revenue, as well as generate interest and competitive advantage for our core products. These ancillary products
include:

o Decision support tools — We offer several different decision support tools designed to supplement the
analytical features of our practice management software products. These tools enable physicians to
access, sort, and display data according to user-selected criteria, including payor, referral source,
reimbursement rate, time interval, and other variables. )
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o Document imaging and management — QOur integrated document imaging and management tools
enable practices to electronically capture, store, and manage all patient documents, as well as automate
and streamline workflow,

o Wireless data entry — Physicians using wireless data entry can enter and review data from a handheld
computing device, via wireless transmission.

o Paim integration — Palm integration allows physicians to download data to Palm-compatible handheld
computing devices, for easy data access while away from the office.

o Web-based services — Web-based services include radiology image and report distribution, patient and
office staff communication, appointment and prescription refill requests, and patient account inquiry.

o Product interfaces — We provide connectivity between our principal products and a variety of third-
party products, such as hospital information systems, lab information systems, coding systems, and
picture archive and communication systems, or PACS.

EDI Services

Our core software products offer transaction-based EDI functions, including patient billing and insurance
claims submission and remittance. The use of EDI can improve a healthcare practice’s cash flow by enabling
more accurate and rapid submission of claims to third-party payors and more rapid receipt of corresponding
reimbursements. We generate revenues by facilitating EDI transactions, currently processing approximately
five million EDI transactions each month. Current EDI services include:

o RapidBill™— Provides comprehensive, automated patient statement processing services.

o RapidCollect™ — Provides collection letter processing.

o RapidReminder™ — Provides appointment reminder notification processing.

o RapidClaim™ — Provides electronic submission of insurance claims, and available claims scrubbing.

o RapidRemit™ — Provides electronic remittance of insurance payments and automatically posts
explanation of benefits data into the practice management system.

s RapidEligibility™ — Provides electronic access to insurance and managed care plans to determine a
patient’s eligibility and covered benefits.

Other Services

We believe that a high level of customer service is important to the successful marketing and sale of our
products. We provide a comprehensive suite of training, consulting and technical support services to
implement and support our products including:

o Software Maintenance — Under the terms of our standard maintenance arrangement, customers pay a
periodic (i.e., monthly, quarterly, annually) maintenance fee. The fee charged is generally a fixed
percentage of the list price at time of contract signing of the licensed software used by customers. This
fee entitles customers to technical support and to any maintenance updates for their software, if and
when updates are released.

o Hardware Maintenance — Similar to software maintenance, customers may contract with us for
maintenance of their hardware. In return for periodic maintenance fees, the customer is provided
comprehensive telephone diagnostic support and on-site field service support. We subcontract with
various third-party hardware maintenance professionals to provide a significant amount of our on-site
field service support.

o Consulting and Training Services — We offer consulting, training, and implementation services on a
time and materials basis. Based on a customer’s technical and application knowledge, the customer can
customize a program with us that provides the customer with the appropriate level of upfront and
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ongoing consulting and training support. Typically customers who purchase new or add-on systems will
utilize our implementation and installation services.

Our services and support organization consisted of 332 employees as of December 31, 2002.

Future Products

In 2002, we released our first products based on our Ingenuity™ platform, which included RadConnect
Results and our first version of RadConnect RIS.

Our Ingenuity™ platform utilizes a server side Java, or J2EE, application paired with a zero-client
browser-based front end (true Web-based technology). Standard SQL databases can be used for data storage.

In February 2003, we completed our first upgrade of RadConnect RIS, which included major
enhancements including mammography tracking. For the balance of 2003 and through 2004, we plan to focus
on developing a variety of products based on our Ingenuity™ platform, including radiology, anesthesiology,
and medical practice management systems as well as an enterprise level electronic medical records, or EMR,
system targeted to the ambulatory healthcare market.

Research and Development

Our development efforts are focused on new products based on our Web-based Ingenuity™ platform, as
well as maintaining the stability and competitiveness of our current product offerings. We augment our
development staff with third-party developers. These third-party resources are focused on new and next
generation product development. Historically, our research and development efforts have principally involved
the incorporation of the best technologies from each acquired product into our core practice management
systems. While we continue to incorporate the best functionality from our acquired products, this is only one
of the tasks that our development staff is charged with. Cur research and development department is also
responsible for coordinating the activities of developers and product managers on all cross-specialty
development efforts. These activities include researching emerging technologies in both the healthcare and
technology sectors, carefully evaluating each for their ability to enable physicians to deliver better healthcare
to their patients more efficiently, and establishing best practices for our development efforts. Our research and
development organization consisted of 150 employees as of December 31, 2002, and is currently co-located
with our support staff primarily in three locations: Daytona, Florida; Birmingham, Alabama; and Minneapolis,
Minnesota. This co-location of staff helps to keep staff focused on industry specific applications and provide
cross communication between the support staff who, in turn, are in regular communication with customers,
thus providing the best quality products for our customers’ needs.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, our research and development expenses were $13.5 million, $10.9 million and
$13.8 million, or 11.8%, 10.2% and 13.6% of total revenues, respectively. In addition, in 2002 and 2001, we
incurred $4.8 million and $4.6 million, respectively, of third-party programmer fees that we capitalized in
conformity with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.”

Sales and Marketing

We market and sell our products in the United States primarily through a direct sales force, composed of
74 sales and marketing personnel as of December 31, 2002. We have sales offices located in Ridgefield,
Connecticut; Birmingham, Alabama; Daytona, Florida; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Portland, Oregon; and
Cincinnati, Ohio. Product support, training and implementation services are also available through many of
these offices. In addition, many of our sales representatives are based from their home offices throughout the
United States. We organize our sales force by medical specialty and product platform. All members of our
sales organization participate in sales training, which among other things, enables them to understand the
specialty-specific needs of our prospective customers.

Within our existing customer base, we promote and sell system upgrades, product add-ons, ancillary
products, maintenance services and EDI services. In addition, we target new customers principally through
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direct mail campaigns, telemarketing, seminars, webinars, trade shows and advertisements in various
publications. Moreover, senior personnel and members of management assist in sales and marketing initiatives
to larger and more technically advanced prospective customers. Sales cycles generally range from an average
of three to four months for small office-based physician systems to as much as six to eighteen months for
clinical and larger scale systems.

For each of the past three fiscal years, no one customer has accounted for more than 10% of total
revenues.

Imtellectual Property

We rely primarily on a combination of copyright and trademark laws, trade secrets, confidentiality
procedures and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights. These laws
and procedures afford only limited protection.

Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of
our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. Policing unauthorized use of our
products is difficult, and such problems may persist. There can be no assurance that our means of protecting
our proprietary rights will be adequate or that competitors will not independently develop similar technology.

Some of our programs aimed at the radiology market have been delivered along with their applicable
source code, which is protected by contractual provisions. In other cases, we have entered into source code
escrow agreements with a limited number of our customers requiring release of source code under certain
limited conditions, including any bankruptcy proceeding by or against us, cessation of our business or our
failure to meet our contractual obligations. :

We rely upon certain software that is licensed from third parties, including software that is integrated
with some of our internally developed software and/or is used with some of our products to perform certain
functions. In some cases, we private label third party software for relicensing. There can be no assurance that
these third party software licenses will continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, which
could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. In addition, there can be no
assurance that third parties will not claim infringement by us with respect to our products or enhancements
thereto.

We distribute our software under software license agreements that grant customers a nonexclusive,
nontransferable license to our products and contain terms and conditions prohibiting the unauthorized
reproduction or transfer of our products.

Competition

QOur principal competitors include both national and regional practice management and clinical systems
vendors. Currently, the practice management and clinical systems industry in the United States is character-
ized by a large number of relatively small, regionally focused companies, comprising a highly fragmented
industry with only a few national vendors. We believe that the larger, national vendors are broadening their
markets to include both small and large healthcare providers. In addition, we compete with national and
regional providers of computerized billing, insurance processing, and record management services to
healthcare practices. As the market for our products and services expands, additional competitors are likely to
enter this market. We believe that the primary competitive factors in our markets are:

» product features and functionality;

o ongoing product enhancements;

o customer service, support and satisfaction;

o the reputation and stability of the vendor; and

o price.




We have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, increased competition from current and
potential competitors, many of whom have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other
resources than us. Such competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and
changes in customer requirements or devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of their
products than us. Also, certain current and potential competitors have greater name recognition or more
extensive customer bases that could be leveraged, thereby gaining market share to our detriment. We expect
additional competition as other established and emerging companies enter into the practice management and
clinical software markets and as new products and technologies are introduced. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, fewer customer orders, reduced gross margins and loss of market share, any of which
would materially adversely affect our business, operating results, cash flows and financial condition.

Current and potential competitors may make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperative relationships
among themselves or with third parties, thereby increasing the ability of their products to address the needs of
our existing and prospective customers. Further competitive pressures, such as those resulting from competi-
tors’ discounting of their products, may require us to reduce the price of our software and complementary
products, which would materially adversely affect our business, operating results, cash flows and financial
condition. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future
competitors, and the failure to do so would have a material adverse effect upon our business, operating results,
cash flows and financial condition.

Privacy Issues

Because our customers use our applications and services to transmit and manage highly sensitive and
confidential health information, we must address the security and confidentiality concerns of our customers
and their patients. To enable the use of our applications and services for the transmission of sensitive and
confidential medical information, we utilize advanced technology designed to ensure a high degree of security.
This technology generally includes:

o security that requires both user IDs and passwords to access our systems locally or remotely, with the
potential of requiring digital certificates for remote, Internet-based access, should such measures be
required;

 encryption of data relating to our ASP applications transmitted over the Internet; and

= use of a mechanism for preventing outsiders from improperly accessing private data resources on our
internal network and our ASP applications, commeonly referred to as a “firewall.”

The level of data encryption used by our products is in compliance with the encryption guidelines set
forth in the proposed rule regarding security and electronic signature standards in connection with HIPAA.
We also encourage our customers to implement their own firewall and security procedures to protect the
confidentiality of information being transferred into and out of their computer networks.

Internally, we work to ensure the safe handling of confidential data by employees in our electronic
services department by:

> using individual user names and passwords for each employee handling electronic data; and

e requiring each employee to sign an agreement to comply with all Company policies, including our
policy regarding handling of confidential information.

We monitor proposed regulations that might affect our applications and services to ensure our compliance
with such regulations when and if they are implemented.
Healthcare Regulation

The healthcare industry is highly regulated and is subject to changing political, regulatory and other
influences. As a participant in the healthcare industry, our operations and relationships are subject to
regulation by federal and state laws and regulations and enforcement by federal and state governmental
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agencies. Sanctions may be imposed for violation of these laws. We review our practices in an effort to ensure
compliance with applicable laws. However, laws governing healthcare are both broad and, in some respects,
vague. As a result, it is often difficult or impossible to determine precisely how laws will be applied,
particularly to new products or to services similar to ours. Any determination by a state or federal regulatory
agency that any of our practices violate any of these laws could subject us to civil or criminal penalties, require
us to change or terminate some portions of our business, and have a material adverse effect on our business.

The relevant healthcare laws are:

HIPAA. The administrative simplification provisions of HIPAA and the various regulations, which have
been proposed and enacted to implement the administrative simplification provisions, include five healthcare-
related standards governing, among other things:

o electronic transactions involving healthcare information,
o privacy of individually identifiable health information, and
o security of healthcare information and electronic signatures.

The regulations governing the electronic exchange of information establish a standard format for the most
common healthcare transactions, including claims, remittances, eligibility, and claims status. The regulations
required compliance by October 16, 2002, unless a covered entity submitted a compliance plan by such date
requesting an extension for compliance until October 16, 2003. We intend to ensure our compliance with the
regulations, as applicable. Many of our customers are subject to the transaction standards and the standards
will affect our processing of healthcare transactions among physicians, payors, patients, and other healthcare
industry participants.

The regulations promulgated pursuant to HIPAA establish national privacy standards for the protection
of individually identifiable health information by certain healthcare organizations. Most healthcare entities
covered by the rule must comply by April 14, 2003. A substantial part of our activities involve the receipt or
delivery of confidential health information concerning patients of our customers in connection with the
processing of healthcare transactions and the provision of technical services to participants in the healthcare
industry. The regulations may restrict the manner in which we transmit and use certain information.

The proposed security regulations enacted pursuant to HIPAA establishing security and electronic
HIPAA signature standards were recently finalized. The security regulations will be effective April 21, 2003,
and most covered entities will have until April 21, 2005 to comply with the standards. The regulations wiil
require certain healthcare organizations to implement administrative safeguards, physical safeguards, techni-
cal security services, and technical security mechanisms with respect to information that is electronically
maintained or transmitted in order to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of individually
identifiable health information. The security standards may require us to enter into agreements with certain of
our customers and business partners restricting the dissemination of health information and requiring
implementation of specified security measures.

Overall, HIPAA may require substantial changes to many of our applications, services, policies, and
procedures that could require us to make significant financial investments, may require us to charge higher
prices to our customers and may also affect our customers’ purchasing practices.

See further discussion regarding HIPAA below in “Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors.”

Other Privacy Requirements. 1In addition to the privacy rule under HIPAA, most states have enacted or
are considering enacting patient confidentiality laws, which would further prohibit the disclosure of confiden-
tial medical information. HIPAA establishes minimum standards and preempts conflicting state laws, which
are less restrictive than HIPAA regarding health information privacy, but does not preempt conflicting state
laws that are more restrictive than HIPAA. The Federal Trade Commission and various state attorneys
general have applied federal and state consumer protection laws to privacy issues.

FDA. The Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, is responsible for assuring the safety and
effectiveness of medical devices under the 1976 Medical Device Amendments to the Food, Drug and
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Cosmetic Act. Computer applications and software are generally subject to regulation as medical devices
requiring registration with the FDA, application of detailed record-keeping and manufacturing standards, and
FDA approval or clearance prior to marketing when such products are intended to be used in the diagnosis,
cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease. If the FDA were to decide that our products and services
should be subject to FDA regulation or if in the future, we expanded our application and service offerings into
areas that may subject us to FDA regulation, the costs of complying with FDA requirements could be
substantial. Application of the approval or clearance requirements could create delays in marketing, and the
FDA could require supplemental filings or object to certain of these products. Qur compliance efforts could
prove to be time consuming, burdensome and expensive on the basis of the novel application of the FDA to us,
and this could have a material adverse effect on our ability to introduce new applications or services in a timely
manner and may require us to charge higher prices.

The Federal Anti-Kickback Law. The federal Anti-Kickback Law includes a prohibition against the
direct or indirect payment or receipt of any remuneration in order to induce the referral of business or patients
reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid, and certain other federal healthcare programs. Violations of the
federal Anti-Kickback Law may result in criminal liability, a felony conviction punishable by a maximum fine
of $125,000, imprisonment up to five years, or both, exclusion from the government programs, and civil
monetary sanctions. Many states also have similar anti-kickback laws that are not limited to items or services
for which payment is made by a federal or state healthcare program, such as Medicare or Medicaid. The
Federal Anti-Kickback Law has been in effect since 1977 and applies broadly to all kinds of providers and
suppliers. If the activities of a customer of ours or other entity with which we have a business relationship were
found to violate the Federal Anti-Kickback Law or other similar anti-kickback or anti-referral laws, and we, as
a result of the provision of products or services to such customer or entity, were found to have knowingly and
willfully participated in such activities, we could be subject to sanction or liability under such laws.

Stark Law. The federal Stark Law restricts referrals by physicians of Medicare, Medicaid, and other
government-program patients to providers of a broad range of designated health services with which they have
ownership or certain other financial arrangements. Many states have adopted or are considering similar
legislative proposals to prohibit the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients and
physician self-referrals regardiess of the source of the payment for the care. These laws and regulations are
extremely complex, and little judicial or regulatory interpretation exists. If the activities of a customer of ours
or other entity with which we have a business relationship were found to constitute a violation of anti-referral
laws, and we were found to have knowingly participated in such activities, we could be subject to sanction or
liability under such law.

The Federal Civil False Claims Act and the Medicare/Medicaid Civil Money Penalties. Federal
regulations prohibit, among other things, the filing of claims for services that were not provided as claimed,
were not medically necessary, or which were otherwise false or fraudulent. Violations of these laws may result
in civil penalties, including treble damages. In addition, Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal statutes
provide for criminal penalties for such false claims. If, during the course of providing services to our
customers, we provide assistance with the filing of such claims, and we were found to have knowingly
participated, or participated with reckless disregard, in such activities, we could be subject to sanction or
liability under such laws.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we employed 651 persons, including 74 in sales and marketing, 332 in
customer support and services, 150 in research and development and 95 in administration, human resources,
information technology, finance and senior management. None of our employees is subject to a collective
bargaining arrangement. We consider our relations with our employees to be satisfactory.
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Qur executive officers are:

Joseph M. Walsh

Joseph M. Walsh, age 43, has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and as a director since
March 2001 and Chairman since June 2001. From April 2000 until March 2001, Mr. Walsh served as
president of our medical software division. From 1987 until April 2000, Mr. Walsh served as president and
chief executive officer of Micro-Designs Software Corporation, a healthcare practice management company
specializing in oral and maxillofacial, and plastic surgery practices. We acquired Micro-Designs in 1998.

Stephen N. Kahane

Stephen N. Kahane, M.D., M.S., age 45, has served as our Vice Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer
and as a director since March 2001. From November 1999 until March 2001, Dr. Kahane served as President
of E-Health and then as Chief Strategy Officer, of our medical software division. From October 1996 until
November 1999, he served as president and chief executive officer of Datamedic Holding Corp., a practice
management and clinical software company specializing in ophthalmology and general medical practices. We
acquired Datamedic in 1999. Prior to joining Datamedic, Dr. Kahane was a co-founder and senior executive at
a clinical software company, Clinical Information Advantages, Inc. Dr. Kahane also trained and served on the
faculty at The Johns Hopkins Medical Center.

Michael A. Manto

Michael A. Manto, age 44, has served as our Executive Vice President and as a director since March
2001, and as our Chief Financial Officer since April 2001. From July 2000 until March 2001, he served as
Executive Vice President of our medical software division. From 1991 until 2000, Mr. Manto was with
Hyperion Solutions Corporation, a multinational business software company, where he served as vice president
and corporate controller. Mr. Manto also served as interim chief financial officer of Hyperion Software
Corporation. Prior to joining Hyperion, Mr. Manto, a certified public accountant, was with Ernst & Young.

Kevin M. Silk

Kevin M. Silk, age 39, has served as our Vice President of Finance and Business Development since
March 2001, and was Vice President of Finance of our medical software division between October 2000 and
March 2001. From 19935 to 2000, Mr. Silk was with Hyperion Solutions Corporation, a multinational business
software company, where he served in the capacities of Director of Business Development and Senior Director
of Financial Planning and Analysis. Prior to joining Hyperion, Mr. Silk, a certified public accountant, was with
Seavex LTD and Ernst & Young.

C. Daren McCormick

C. Daren McCormick, age 41, has served as our Chief Operations Officer since March 2001. He was
Chief Operations Officer of our medical software division between April 2000 and March 2001. From July
1999 until April 2000, he served as our Vice President of Systems Engineering and from October 1998 until
July 1999, he served as our Vice President of Business Development. From 1995 until October 1998, he served
as Senior Manager of Research and Development of the Healthcare Systems Division of Reynolds and
Reynolds, a healthcare practice management company. We acquired the Healthcare Systems Division of
Reynolds and Reynolds in October 1998.

Stephen Hicks

Stephen Hicks, age 44, has served as our Vice President and General Counsel since March 2001. He was
Vice President of our medical software division between August 2000 and March 2001. Prior to joining us, he
was First Deputy Commissioner at the New York State Division of Housing from January 1999, and worked
from February 1995 to December 1998 on the executive staff of Dennis C. Vacco, the New York State
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Attorney General. From 1983 until 1995, Mr. Hicks worked for McCullough, Goldberger and Staudt, a New
York law firm.

Eric A. Montgomery

Eric A. Montgomery, age 48, has served as our Corporate Vice President of Sales since November 2002.
From 1999 to 2002, he acted as Vice President of Sales and Business Development for OutlookSoft
Corporation, a venture-backed software company specializing in the area of business intelligence. From 1997
to 1999, he served as Vice President of Sales at Information Management Associates. Prior positions included
Senior Sales Director at Hyperion Software Corporation, as well as various sales and marketing positions at
Citicorp’s Information Division and Comshare, Inc.

In April and May 2002, each of our executive officers entered into an individual stock trading plan, or a
so-called Rule 10b5-1 plan. These plans specify trading periods that generally extend for up to one year,
number of shares to be sold, and prices at which shares may be sold. If all conditions of the plans are met, the
total number of shares that may be sold under the plans would equal 19.9% of the aggregate number of shares,
including unvested option shares, then held by the executive officers. More specifically, the Rule 10b5-1 plan
of Joseph M. Walsh, our president and chief executive officer, provides for the sale of not more than
90,000 shares on-average per quarter over the twelve months ending May 30, 2003, which began with the
announcement of our operating results for the June 2002 quarter. The aggregate number of shares that may be
sold under this plan represents 11.3% of the number of shares, including unvested option shares, then held by
Mr. Walsh. Since March 6, 2001, approximately 11.6% of the aggregate holdings of the executive officers was
sold.

The Distribution

On March 5, 2001, or the Distribution Date, we completed the Distribution of PracticeWorks to our
stockholders in a tax-free distribution. The spin-off of PracticeWorks was effected by way of a pro rata
dividend of all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of PracticeWorks to our stockholders of
record as of February 21, 2001. This resulted in PracticeWorks becoming an independent, publicly-traded
company. Immediately prior to the Distribution, we effectively transferred to PracticeWorks the division’s
assets and liabilities and, thereby, distributed $28.5 million of net assets, as adjusted, in connection with the
Spin-Off. Our stockholders received one share of PracticeWorks common stock for every four shares of our
common stock owned as of the record date. No proceeds were received by us in connection with the
Distribution.

For purposes of governing certain of the ongoing relationships between PracticeWorks and us, and to
provide for an orderly transition to the status of two independent companies, we and PracticeWorks entered
into various agreements. Among other things, these agreements define the ongoing relationship between the
parties after the Distribution. Because these agreements were negotiated while PracticeWorks was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ours, they are not the result of negotiations between independent parties, although we and
PracticeWorks set pricing terms for interim services believed to be comparable to what would have been
achieved through arm’s-length negotiations. Following the Distribution, additional or medified agreements,
arrangements and transactions were entered into between PracticeWorks and us and such agreements and
transactions were determined through arm’s-length negotiations. In connection with the Distribution, both
companies have indemnified the other, and either may incur obligations with respect to certain representa-
tions, warranties, commitments, and/or contingencies of the other entered into on or prior to the Distribution
Date. A brief description of certain of the material agreements follows:

Distribution Agreement

Prior to the Distribution Date, we and PracticeWorks entered into the Distribution Agreement, which
provided for, among other things, the principal corporate transactions required to effect the Distribution and
other agreements relating to the continuing relationship between PracticeWorks and us after the Distribution.
Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, we transferred to PracticeWorks all of the assets and liabilities
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relating to our information management technology business for dentists, orthodontists and oral and
maxillofacial surgeons.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement and effective as of the Distribution Date, PracticeWorks
assumed, and agreed to indemnify us against, all liabilities, litigation, and claims, including related insurance
costs, arising out of PracticeWorks’ business. We retained, and agreed to indemnify PracticeWorks against, all
liabilities, litigation, and claims, including related insurance costs, arising out of our business. The foregoing
obligations do not entitle an indemnified party to recovery to the extent any such liability is covered by
proceeds received by such party from any third party insurance policies.

The Distribution Agreement provides that each of PracticeWorks and us will be granted access to certain
records and information in the possession of the other, and will require the retention by each of PracticeWorks
and us for a period of eight years following the Distribution Date of all of this information in its possession.
Also, the Distribution Agreement provides for a three-year period during which neither PracticeWorks nor we
may solicit pre-cxisting customers or employees of the other party.

Transition Services Agreement

We and PracticeWorks entered into the Transition Services Agreement on the Distribution Date.
Pursuant to this agreement, in exchange for specified fees, we provided to PracticeWorks services including
insurance-related services and employee benefit services, and PracticeWorks provided to us services including
the preparation of tax returns, maintenance of the general ledger, preparation of financial statements,
corporate record-keeping, and payroll for a fee of $.4 million in 2001, The fees paid pursuant to the Transition
Services Agreement were agreed upon between the parties. This agreement terminated on December 31,
2001. Management believes that the terms and conditions were as favorable to us as those available from
unrelated parties for a comparable arrangement.

Tax Disaffiliation Agreement

We and PracticeWorks entered into the Tax Disaffiliation Agreement on the Distribution Date which
identifies each party’s rights and obligations with respect to deficiencies and refunds, if any, of federal, state,
local, or foreign taxes for periods before and after the Distribution and related matters such as the filing of tax
returns and the handling of Internal Revenue Service matters and other audits. Under the Tax Disaffiliation
Agreement, PracticeWorks will indemnify us for any tax liability attributable to PracticeWorks or its affiliates
for any period. PracticeWorks will also indemnify us for all taxes and liabilities incurred solely because
(i) PracticeWorks breaches a representation or covenant given to the law firm King & Spalding in connection
with rendering its tax opinion in the Distribution, which breach contributes to an Internal Revenue Service
determination that the Distribution was not tax-free, or (ii) a post-Distribution action or omission by
PracticeWorks or any affiliate of PracticeWorks contributes to an Internal Revenue Service determination that
the Distribution was not tax-free. We will indemnify PracticeWorks for all taxes and liabilities incurred solely
because (i) we breach a representation or covenant given to King & Spalding in connection with rendering its
tax opinion in the Distribution, which breach contributes to an Internal Revenue Service determination that
the Distribution was not tax-free, or (ii) a post-Distribution action or omission by us or any affiliate
contributes to an Internal Revenue Service determination that the Distribution was not tax-free. If the
Internal Revenue Service determines that the Distribution was not tax-free for any other reason, we and
PracticeWorks will indemnify each other against 50% of all taxes and liabilities.

PracticeWorks will also indemnify us for any taxes resulting from any internal realignment undertaken to
facilitate the Distribution on or before the Distribution Date.
Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement

We and PracticeWorks entered into the Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement on
the Distribution Date, which contains provisions relating to employee compensation, benefits and labor
matters and the treatment of options to purchase our common stock held by our employees who became
PracticeWorks employees. This agreement provides that our options held by our employees who became
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PracticeWorks employees immediately following the Distribution may be replaced by PracticeWorks options.
PracticeWorks employees whose VitalWorks options were fully vested as of the Distribution Date had the
right to surrender their vested VitalWorks options for options to purchase PracticeWorks common stock for a
period of 30 days following the Distribution Date, or April 4, 2001. Any of our employees who became
PracticeWorks employees who chose not to surrender their vested VitalWorks options during this time period
continued to hold VitalWorks options which expired generally within 30 to 90 days from the Distribution
Date. PracticeWorks employees who were not fully vested in VitalWorks options as of the Distribution Date
had their VitalWorks options exchanged for PracticeWorks options as of the Distribution Date (see Note I of
the accompanying financial statements for further discussion).

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors That May Affect Future Resalts

Except for the historical information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the matters
discussed herein contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities laws.
Statements regarding future events and developments and our future performance, as well as our manage-
ment’s expectations, beliefs, intentions, plans, estimates or projections relating to the future, are forward-
looking statements within the meaning of these laws. Our management believes that these forward-looking
statements are reasonable and are based on reasonable assumptions and forecasts. However, these forward-
looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. As a result, actual results may vary
materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements.

Among the important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially are the risk factors
described below. You should read these factors and the other cautionary statements made in this document as
being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of
the date of this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

You should carefully consider the following risk factors. Any of the following risks could seriously harm
our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations and cause the value of our common
stock to decline. The risks and uncertainties described below are those that we currently believe may
materially affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are currently unaware of or that we currently
consider to be immaterial may also become important factors that affect us.

Qur operating results will vary from period to period. In addition, we have experienced losses in the past
and may never achieve or maintain consistent profitability.

Our operating results will vary significantly from quarter to quarter and from year to year. In addition,
prior to the first quarter of 2002, we have experienced net losses. Our net loss was $(27.8) million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 and $(78.1) million for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Our operating results have been and/or may be influenced significantly by factors such as:

« release of new products, product upgrades and services, and the rate of adoption of these products and
services by new and existing customers;

e timing of and costs related to development of our products;
o length of sales and delivery cycles;

» size and timing of orders for our products and services;

» availability of specified computer hardware for resale;

» deferral and/or realization of deferred software license and system revenues according to contract
terms;
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o interpretations of accounting regulations, principles or concepts that are or may be considered relevant
to our business arrangements and practices;

o changes in customer purchasing patterns;
o competition, including alternative product and service offerings, and price pressure;

o timing of and charges or costs associated with acquisitions or other strategic events or transactions,
completed or not completed;

* timing and levels of advertising and promotional expenditures;

> changes of accounting estimates and assumptions used to prepare the prior periods’ financial
statements and accompanying notes, and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations (e.g., our valuation of assets and estimation of liabilities); and

o uncertainties concerning pending and new litigation against us, including related professional services
fees.

In addition, we operate with a minimal amount of software licensing and system sales backlog. Therefore,
quarterly and annual revenues and operating results are highly dependent on the volume and timing of the
signing of license agreements and product deliveries during each quarter. A significant portion of our quarterly
sales of software product licenses and computer hardware is concluded in the last month of the fiscal quarter,
generally with a concentration of our quarterly revenues earned in the final ten business days of that month.
Also, our projections for revenues and operating results include significant sales of new product and service
offerings, including our new radiology information system, or RIS, and sales and services related to the
implementation of HIPAA, which may not be realized. Due to these and other factors, our revenues and
operating results are very difficult to forecast. A major portion of our costs and expenses, such as personnel and
facilities, is of a fixed nature and, accordingly, a shortfall or decline in quarterly and/or annual revenues
typically results in lower profitability or losses. As a result, comparison of our period-to-period financial
performance is not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indicator of future performance.
Due to the many variables in forecasting our revenues and operating results, it is likely that our results for a
particular reporting period (s) will not meet our expectations or the expectations of public market analysts or
investors. Failure to attain these expectations would likely cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our competitive position could be significantly harmed if we fail to protect our intellectual property rights
Jfrom third-party challenges.

Cur ability to compete depends in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property rights. We rely
on a combination of copyright, trademark, and trade secret laws and restrictions on disclosure to protect the
intellectual property rights related to our software applications. Our software technology is not patented and
existing copyright laws offer only limited practical protection. In addition, in the past we have not generally
entered into confidentiality agreements with our employees. Although current practices require all new
employees to sign confidentiality agreements, not all existing employees have signed agreements. We cannot
assure you that the legal protections that we rely on will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our
technology.

Further, we may need to bring lawsuits or pursue other legal or administrative proceedings in order to
enforce our intellectual property rights. Generally, lawsuits and proceedings of this type, even if successful, are
costly, time consuming and could divert our personnel and other resources away from our business, which
could harm our business.

Moreover, these protections do not prevent independent third-party development of competitive technol-
ogy or services. Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our technology.
Monitoring use of our technology is difficult, and we cannot assure you that the steps we have taken will
prevent unauthorized use of our technology, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect
our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.
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Intellectual property infringement claims against us could be costly to defend and could divert our
management’s attention away from our business.

As the number of software products and services in our target markets increases and as the functionality
of these products and services overlaps, we may become increasingly subject to the threat of intellectual
property infringement claims. Any infringement claims alleged against us, regardless of their merit, can be
time consuming and expensive to defend. Infringement claims may also divert our management’s attention
and resources and could also cause delays in the delivery of our applications to our customers. Settlement of
any infringement claims could require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements on terms that are costly
or cost-prohibitive. If a claim of infringement against us were successful and if we were unable to license the
infringing or similar technology or redesign our products and services to avoid infringement, our business,
financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations could be harmed.

We recently instituted a stock repurchase program, which may involve the use of significant cash resources.

In October 2002, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $15 million of our common
stock from time to time. The timing and amount of any share repurchases are determined by management
based on our evaluation of market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program may be suspended or
discontinued at any time. Repurchased shares are available for use in connection with stock plans and for
other corporate purposes. The repurchase program is funded using our existing cash resources. Spending under
this program may in turn limit our ability to invest in our core business activities or undertake acquisitions, if
any. In addition, there are a number of important factors that could cause us not to repurchase shares
including, among others, the market price of our common stock, the nature of other investment opportunities
available to us, our cash flows from operations, general economic conditions, and other factors identified in this
report. As of March 24, 2003, we repurchased 1,873,002 shares of our common stock under the program for an
aggregate cost of $6.0 million.

We may undertake acquisitions, which may involve significant uncertainties and may increase costs, divert
management resources from our core business activities, or fail to realize anticipated benefits of such
acquisitions.

We may undertake acquisitions if we identify companies with complementary applications, services,
businesses or technologies. We may not achieve any of the anticipated synergies and other benefits that we
expected to realize from these acquisitions. In addition, software companies depend heavily on their
employees to maintain the quality of their software offerings and related customer services. If we were unable
to retain the acquired companies’ personnel or integrate them into our operations, the value of the acquired
products, technology, and/or client base could be compromised. The amount and timing of the expected
benefits of any acquisition are also subject to other significant risks and uncertainties. These risks and
uncertainties include: :

> our ability to cross-sell products and services to customers with which we have established relationships
and those with which the acquired business had established relationships;

o diversion of our management’s attention from our existing business;
 potential conflicts in customer and supplier relationships;

« our ability to coordinate organizations that are geographically diverse and may have different business
cultures;

« dilution to existing stockholders if we issue equity securities;
« assumption of liabilities or other obligations in connection with the acquisition; and
« compliance with regulatory requirements.

Further, our profitability may also suffer because of acquisition-related costs and/or amortization or
impairment of intangible assets.
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If our new products, including product upgrades, and services do not achieve sufficient market acceptance,
our business, financial condition, cash flows, and operating results will suffer.

The success of our business will depend in part on the market acceptance of:

o new products and services, such as our radiology information system, or RIS, products and services;
and

o enhancements to our existing products and services.

There can be no assurance that our clients will accept any of these products, product upgrades, or
services. In addition, there can be no assurance that any pricing strategy that we implement for any of our new
products, product upgrades, or services will be economically viable or acceptable to our target markets. Failure
to achieve significant penetration in our target markets with respect to any of our new products, product
upgrades, or services could have a material adverse effect on our business prospects.

Achieving market acceptance for our new products, product upgrades and services is likely to require
substantial marketing and service efforts and expenditure of significant funds to create awareness and demand
by participants in the healthcare industry. In addition, deployment of new or newly integrated products or
product upgrades may require the use of additional resources for training our existing sales force and customer
service personnel and for hiring and training additional sales and customer service personnel. There can be no
assurance that the revenue opportunities for our new products, product upgrades and services will justify the
amounts that we spend for their development, marketing and rollout.

Technology solutions may change faster than we are able to update our technology, which could cause a
loss of customers and have a negative impact on our revenues.

The information management technology market in which we compete is characterized by rapidly
changing technology, evolving industry standards, emerging competition and the frequent introduction of new
services, software and other products. Our success depends partly on our ability to:

= develop new or enhance existing products and services to meet our customers’ changing needs in a
timely and cost-effective way; and

o respond effectively to technological changes, new product offerings, product enhancements and new
services of our competitors.

We cannot be sure that we will be able to accomplish these goals. Qur development of new and enhanced
products and services may take longer than originally expected, require more testing than originally
anticipated and require the acquisition of additional personnel and other resources. In addition, there can be
no assurance that the products and/or services we develop or license will be able to compete with the
alternatives available to our customers. Qur competitors may develop products or technologies that are better
or more attractive than our products or technologies, or that may render our products or technology obsolete.
If we do not succeed in adapting our products, technology and services or developing new products,
technologies and services, our business could be harmed.

The nature of our products and services exposes us to product liability claims that may not be adequately
covered by insurance or contractual indemnification.

As a product and service provider in the healthcare industry, we operate under the continual threat of
product liability claims being brought against us. For example, if patient information processed through our
systems is incorrect, patients may receive inadequate or inapplicable medical treatment, which could subject
us to significant liability. Errors or malfunctions with respect to our products or services could also result in
product liability claims. Although we believe that we carry adequate insurance coverage against product
liability claims, we cannot assure you that claims in excess of our insurance coverage will not arise. In
addition, our insurance policies must be renewed annually. Although we have been able to obtain what we
believe to be adequate insurance coverage at an acceptable cost in the past, we cannot assure you that we will
continue to be able to obtain adequate insurance coverage at an acceptable cost.
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In many instances, our agreements have provisions requiring the other party to the agreement to
indemnify us against certain liabilities. However, any indemnification of this type is limited, as a practical
matter, to the creditworthiness of the indemnifying party. If the contractual indemnification rights available
under our agreements are not adequate or inapplicable to the product liability claims that may be brought
against us, then, to the extent not covered by our insurance, our business, operating results, cash flows and
financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Our business could suffer if our products and services contain errors, experience failures, result in loss of
our customers’ data or do not meet customer expectations.

The products and services that we offer are inherently complex. Despite testing and quality control, we
cannot be certain that errors will not be found in prior versions, current versions or future versions or
enhancements of our products and services. We also cannot assure you that our products and services will not
experience partial or complete failure, especially our new product or service offerings. It is also possible that as
a result of any of these errors and/or failures, our customers may suffer loss of data. The loss of business,
medical or patient data or the loss of the ability to process data for any length of time may be a significant
problem for some of our customers who have time-sensitive or mission-critical practices. We could face
breach of warranty or other claims or additional development costs if our software contains errors, if our
customers suffer loss of data or are unable to process their data, if our products and/or services experience
failures, do not perform in accordance with their documentation, or do not meet the expectations that our
customers have for them. Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, investigating and defending
against them could be expensive and time consuming and could divert management’s attention away from our
operations. In addition, negative publicity caused by these events may delay or reduce market acceptance of
our products and services, including unrelated products and services. Such errors, failures or claims could
materially adversely affect our business, revenues, operating resuits, cash flows and financial condition.

We may be subject to claims resulting from the activities of our strategic partners.

We rely on third parties to provide services critical to our business. For example, we use national
clearinghouses in the processing of insurance claims and we outsource some of our hardware maintenance
services and the printing and delivery of patient billings for our customers. We also have relationships with
certain third parties where these third parties serve as sales channels through which we generate a portion of
our revenues. Due to these third-party relationships, we could be subject to claims as a result of the activities,
products, or services of these third-party service providers even though we were not directly involved in the
circumstances leading to those claims. Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, defending and
investigating these claims could be expensive and time-consuming, divert personnel and other resources from
our business and result in adverse publicity that could harm our business.

We are subject to government regulation and legal uncertainties, the compliance with which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

HIPAA. Federal regulations have been adopted, and others have been proposed, that impact the manner
in which we conduct our business. We will be required to expend resources to comply with regulations under
HIPAA. The total extent and amount of resources to be expended is not yet known. Because these regulations
are new, there is uncertainty as to how they will be interpreted and enforced. In addition, the delay in adopting
final security regulations creates uncertainties as to what security requirements ultimately will be imposed, to
what extent we will be required to comply with those requirements, and what the deadline for compliance will
be.

Although we will make a good faith effort to ensure that we comply with, and that our go-forward
products enable compliance with, applicable HIPAA requirements, we may not be able to conform all of our
operations and products to such requirements in a timely manner, or at all. The failure to do so could subject
us to civil liability when we are the business associate of a covered entity, and could subject us to civil liability
and criminal sanctions to the extent we are regulated directly as a covered entity. In addition, delay in
developing or failure to develop products that would enable HIPAA compliance for our current and
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prospective customers could put us at a significant disadvantage in the marketplace. Accordingly, the sale of
our products and our business could be harmed by the implementation of HIPAA regulations.

Other E-commerce Regulations. We may be subject to additional federal and state statutes and
regulations in connection with offering services and products via the Internet. On an increasingly frequent
basis, federal and state legislators are proposing laws and regulations that apply to Internet commerce and
communications. Areas being affected by these regulations include user privacy, pricing, content, taxation,
copyright protection, distribution, and quality of products and services. To the extent that our products and
services are subject to these laws and regulations, the sale of our products and services could be harmed.

Changes in state and federal laws relating to confidentiality of patient medical records could limit our
customers’ ability to use our services.

The confidentiality of patient records and the circumstances under which records may be released are
already subject to substantial regulation by state governments. Although compliance with these laws and
regulations is principally the responsibility of the healthcare provider, under these current laws and regulations
patient confidentiality rights are evolving rapidly. In addition to the obligations being imposed at the state
level, there is also legislation governing the dissemination of medical information at the federal level. The
federal regulations may require holders of this information to implement security measures, which could entail
substantial expenditures on our part. Adoption of these types of legislation or other changes to state or federal
laws could materially affect or restrict the ability of healthcare providers to submit information from patient
records using our products and services. These kinds of restrictions would likely decrease the value of our
applications to our customers, which could materially harm our business.

Changes in the regulatory and economic environment in the healthcare industry could cause us to lose
revenue and incur substantial costs to comply with new regulations.

The healthcare industry is highly regulated and is subject to changing political, economic and regulatory
influences. These factors affect the purchasing practices and operations of healthcare organizations. Changes
in current healthcare financing and reimbursement systems could require us to make unplanned enhancements
of applications or services, or result in delays or cancellations of orders or in the revocation of endorsement of
our services by our strategic partners and others. Federal and state legislatures have periodically considered
programs to reform or amend the U.S. healthcare system at both the federal and state level. These programs
may contain proposals to increase governmental involvement in healthcare, lower reimbursement rates or
otherwise change the environment in which healthcare industry participants operate. Healthcare industry
participants may respond by reducing their investments or postponing investment decisions, including
investments in our applications and services.

Larger competitors and consolidation of competitors could cause us to lower our prices or to lose
customers.

" Our principal competitors include both national and regional practice management and clinical systems
vendors. Currently, the practice management and clinical systems industry in the United States is character-
ized by a large number of relatively small, regionally focused companies, comprising a highly fragmented
industry with only a few national vendors. Until recently, larger, national vendors have targeted primarily large
healthcare providers. We believe that the larger, national vendors may broaden their markets to include both
small and large healthcare providers. In addition, we compete with national and regional providers of
computerized billing, insurance processing and record management services to healthcare practices. As the
market for our products and services expands, additional competitors are likely to enter this market. We
believe that the primary competitive factors in our markets are:

o product features and functionality;
> customer service, support and satisfaction;
° price;
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o ongoing product enhancements; and
o the reputation and stability of the vendor.

We have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, increased competition from current and
potential competitors, many of which have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other
resources than us. Such competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and
changes in customer requirements or devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of their
products than us. Also, certain current and potential competitors have greater name recognition or more
extensive customer bases that could be leveraged, thereby gaining market share to our detriment. We expect
additional competition as other established and emerging companies enter into the practice management and
clinical software markets and as new products and technologies are introduced. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, fewer customer orders, reduced gross margins and loss of market share, any of which
would materially adversely affect our business, operating results, cash flows and financial condition.

Current and potential competitors may make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperative relationships
among themselves or with third parties, thereby increasing the ability of their products to address the needs of
our existing and prospective customers. Further competitive pressures, such as those resulting from competi-
tors’ discounting of their products, may require us to reduce the price of our software and complementary
products, which would materially adversely affect our business, operating results, cash flows and financial
condition. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future
competitors, and the failure to do so would have a material adverse effect upon our business, operating results,
cash flows and financial condition.

We depend on partners/suppliers for delivery of electronic data interchange (insurance claims processing and
invoice printing services), commonly referred to as EDI, hardware maintenance services and sales lead
generation. Any failure, inability or unwillingness of these suppliers to perform these services could negatively
impact customer satisfaction and revenues.

We use various third-party suppliers to provide our customers with EDI transactions and on-site
hardware maintenance. EDI revenue would be particularly vulnerable to a supplier failure because EDI
revenues are earned on a daily basis. Although other vendors are available in the marketplace to provide these
services, it would take time to switch suppliers. If these suppliers were unable to perform such services or the
quality of these services declined, it could have a negative impact on customer satisfaction and ultimately
result in a decrease in our revenues.

Our systems may be vulnerable to security breaches and viruses.

The success of our strategy to offer our EDI services and Internet solutions depends on the confidence of
our customers in our ability to securely transmit confidential information. Cur EDI services and Internet
solutions rely on encryption, authentication and other security technology licensed from third parties to
achieve secure transmission of confidential information. We may not be able to stop unauthorized attempts to
gain access to or disrupt the transmission of communications by our customers. Anyone who is able to
circumvent our security measures could misappropriate confidential user information or interrupt our, or our
customers’, operations. In addition, our EDI and Internet solutions may be vulnerable to viruses, physical or
electronic break-ins, and similar disruptions. Any failure to provide secure electronic communication services
could result in a lack of trust by our customers causing them to seek out other vendors, and/or, damage our
reputation in the market making it difficult to obtain new customers.

If the marketplace demands subscription pricing and/or application service provider, or ASP, delivered
offerings, our revenues may be adversely impacted.

We currently derive substantially all of our revenues from traditional software license, maintenance and
service fees, as well as the resale of computer hardware. Today, customers pay an initial license fee for the use
of our products, in addition to a periodic maintenance fee. If the marketplace demands subscription pricing
and/or ASP-delivered offerings, we may be forced to adjust our strategy accordingly, by offering a higher
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percentage of our products and services through these means. Shifting to subscription pricing and/or ASP-
delivered offerings could materially adversely impact our financial condition, cash flows and quarterly and
annual revenues and results of operations, as our revenues would initially decrease substantially. We cannot
assure you that the marketplace will not embrace subscription pricing and/or ASP-delivered offerings.

We structured the spin-off of practiceworks as a tax-free transaction and practiceworks agreed to indemnify us

for any tax liabilities arising out of the transaction. If the spin-off does not qualify as a tax-free transaction, we
may be subject to liabilities and we cannot assure you that practiceworks will honor its indemnification
obligations.

The spin-off of PracticeWorks was structured to qualify as a tax-free distribution under Section 355 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Section 355 places certain requirements that must be complied with in order
to qualify for tax-free treatment. Failure to comply with those restrictions could cause us to incur significant
liabilities. PracticeWorks has generally agreed to indemnify us under certain circumstances to the extent any
action or omission on its part contributes to a determination by the Internal Revenue Service that the spin-off
was not a tax-free transaction. However, we cannot assure you that PracticeWorks will have sufficient
resources to fulfill its indemnification obligations and even if it had the resources, we cannot assure you that
PracticeWorks will not refute its indemnifications altogether. In either case, if we are not indemnified, we may
incur substantial liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
cash flows and results of operations.

Our growth could be limited if we are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel.

We believe that our success depends largely on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled technical,
managerial and sales personnel to develop, sell and implement our products and services. Individuals with the
information technology, managerial and selling skills we need to further develop, sell and implement our
products and services are in short supply and competition for qualified personnel is particularly intense. We
may not be able to hire the necessary personnel to implement our business strategy, or we may need to pay
higher compensation for employees than we currently expect. We cannot assure you that we will succeed in
attracting and retaining the personnel we need to continue to grow and to implement our business strategy. In
addition, we depend on the performance of our executive officers and other key employees. The loss of any
member of our senior management team could negatively impact our ability to execute our business strategy.

If our interpretation of the accounting pronouncements regarding revenue recognition is not correct or if the
regulators of accounting standards modifies or issues new pronouncements, then our business and financial
statements could be adversely affected.

Based on our reading and interpretations of Statement of Positions 81-1, 97-2 and 98-9 and related or
relevant guidance, principles or concepts, issued by, among other authorities, the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, and the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (e.g., Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101), we believe our current sales and
licensing contract terms and business arrangements have been properly reported. However, there continue to
be issued interpretations and guidance for applying the relevant standards to a wide range of sales and
licensing contract terms and business arrangements that are prevalent in the software industry. Future
interpretations or changes by the regulators of existing accounting standards or changes in our business
practices could result in future changes in our revenue recognition accounting policies and practices that could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, revenues and results of
operations.
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Access to Qur Filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Our Internet address is www.vitalworks.com. The information on our website is not a part of, or
incorporated into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 available, without charge, on our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically with, or otherwise furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

item 2. Properties

We currently occupy and lease nine facilities. These facilities are located in: Atlanta, Georgia; Beaverton,
Oregon; Birmingham, Alabama; Minneapolis and Rochester, Minnesota; Daytona Beach, Florida; Carlsbad,
California; Ridgefield, Connecticut; and Fairfield, Ohio. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for
our current needs; however, if additional space is needed in the future, we believe that suitable additional or
alternative space will be available on commercially reasonable terms as needed.

Etem 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, in the normal course of business, various claims are made against us. Except for
proceedings described below, there are no material proceedings to which we are a party, and management is
unaware of any material contemplated actions against us.

On February 27, 2003, a purported class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for
the District of Connecticut against VitailWorks Inc. and three of our executive officers. The action was brought
by plaintiff Bernard Frazier, on behalf of purchasers of our securities between April 24, 2002 and October 23,
2002 (the “Class Period”). The complaint alleges, among other things, violations of Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and breach of fiduciary duties. The
complaint alleges that the defendants made misleading statements and omissions regarding our business and
operations, principally in press releases and public conference calls in April 2002 and July 2002, which
allegedly had the effect of artificially inflating the market price of our common stock during the Class Period,
and that six of our officers, including the defendant officers, sold shares of our common stock during the
Class Period. The plaintiff seeks recovery of an unstated amount of compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and
costs. We understand that an additional lawsuit or lawsuits containing substantially similar causes of action as
the above referenced matter has been filed against us, although we have not yet been served with any
complaint.

On April 19, 2001, a lawsuit styled David and Susan Jones v. InfoCure Corporation (now known as
VitalWorks Inc.), et al., was filed in Boone County Superior Court in Indiana. The defendants removed the
case to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. The complaint alleges state
securities law violations, breach of contract, and fraud claims against the defendants. The complaint does not
specify the amount of damages sought by plaintiffs, but seeks rescission of a transaction that the plaintiffs
value at $5 million, as well as punitive damages and reimbursement for the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and
associated costs and expenses of the lawsuit. In a decision from the Court dated October 15, 2001, the
plaintiffs’ request for a preliminary injunction to preserve their remedy of rescission was denied, part of their
complaint was dismissed and the case was transferred to the Northern District Court of Georgia. On
October 26, 2001, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal with the 7th Circuit Court of Appeals. On November 8§,
2002, the 7th Circuit Court affirmed the denial of the preliminary injunction and dismissed the remainder of
the appeal. The case is now pending in the Northern District Court of Georgia and the plaintiffs have obtained
leave of the Court to file an amended complaint.

While management believes that we have meritorious defenses in each of the foregoing matters and we
intend to pursue our positions vigorously, litigation is inherently subject to many uncertainties. Thus, the
outcome of these matters is uncertain and could be adverse to us. However, even if the outcome of these cases
is adverse, we do not believe that the outcome of these cases, individually or in the aggregate, will have a
material adverse effect on our financial position. However, depending on the amount and timing of an
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unfavorable resolution(s) of the contingencies, it is possible that our future results of operations or cash flows
could be materially affected in a particular reporting period(s).

We were named as a defendant as successor to CDL Healthcare Systems, Inc. (“CDL”), a company
acquired by us in December 1999, in a complaint filed in the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in
Dade County, Florida on February 27, 2001 by Sonia Abutog, individually, Angelo Abutog, individually, and
Sonia and Angelo Abutog, as parents and next best friends to Aaron Abutog, a minor. Gary Weiner, former
President of CDL, and his daughter, Elisha Weiner, were also named as defendants. Plaintiffs alleged that
they were injured at a time, prior to the merger between us and CDL, when a motor vehicle operated by Elisha
Weiner collided with plaintiff Sonia Abutog, a pedestrian. The plaintiff contended that she and her unborn
child suffered severe personal injuries as a result of the accident and sought to recover damages in an
unspecified amount in excess of $15,000, plus interest and costs. Gur motion for final summary judgment
dismissing the action against us was granted by order of the Court dated July 9, 2002. The plaintiffs did not file
a Notice of Appeal of this decision and the time to do so has expired.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

In the fourth quarter of the year covered by this report, no matter was submitted to a vote of security
holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

23




PART If

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

On March 6, 2001, we changed our trading symbol on the Nasdaq National Market to “VWKS.” From
January 29, 1999 until March 5, 2001, our common stock was traded on the Nasdaq National Market under
the trading symbol “INCX.” From July 10, 1997 until January 29, 1999, our common stock was traded on the
American Stock Exchange under the symbol “INC.” On March 24, 2003, the last reported sale price of our
common stock on the Nasdaq National Market was $4.05 and there were 1,295 record holders of our common
stock. The following table sets forth the high and low sales price per share of our common stock for the periods
indicated, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market.

High  Low_
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Farst QUarter . o $438 § 94
Second QUATter . ... i e e e 2.50 1.10
Third Quarter ... ... . e 3.40 2.00
Fourth Quarter ... .. e 5.97 2.20
High  Low
Year Ended December 31, 2002
First QUArter ...t $6.45 $4.25
Second QUarter . .. ... e e 9.66 5.31
Third Quarter .. ... e e e e 8.55 5.68
Fourth Quarter .. ... .. .. e e 8.20 2.82
2003
First quarter (through March 24) . ... ... ... ... .. . ... . . $4.39  $3.60

Dividend Policies. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We
currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of
our business and do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future
determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors
and will depend on then existing conditions, including our financial condition, results of operations, contractual
restrictions, capital requirements, business prospects and other factors that our board of directors considers
relevant. In addition, our credit agreement with Foothill Capital Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Wells Fargo & Company, prohibits payment of dividends.

Sales of Unregistered Shares. In April 2002, we issued 26,434 unregistered shares of our common stock,
and in May 2002, we issued 145,293 unregistered shares of our common stock. These shares were issued in
connection with the exercise of outstanding warrants. The unregistered shares were issued in reliance upon the
exemption from registration under Section 3{a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Item 6. Selected Consofidated Financial Data

For the Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands, except per share data)
Statements of Operations Data
Revenues
Maintenance and services ................ $ 84,808 $ 85,181 $ 79,984 § 87,127  $46,575
Software licenses and system sales ......... 36,003 21,872 21,682 61,916 39,783
Total TEVENUES . . oottt e 114,811 107,053 101,666 149,043 86,358
Costs and expenses
Cost of revenues: 19,255
Maintenance and services ................ 21,970 19,401 19,861 16,799
Software licenses and system sales, includes
amortization of product development costs
of $911in 2002 . ..........coovriiinn, 8,749 6,267 8,886 23,160
Selling, general and administrative . .......... 43,716 54,371 70,688 76,104 42,586
Research and development ................. 13,535 10,871 13,833 11,470 13,861
Depreciation and amortization. .............. 2,572 26,207 27,966 11,206 4,110
Loss on headquarters building held for sale. . .. 1,375
Impairment charges (credits) and other
NONTECUITINE COSIS . o v v vt v e e {6,000) 8,252 6,632 4,743
Restructuring costs (credits) ................ (561) (425) 9,338 4,124 843
Merger Costs . ... 3,105 54
Purchased research and development ......... 9,000
Compensatory stock awards................. 1,003
90,041 126,319 157,204 151,714 89,709
Operating income (loss) ................... 24,770 (19,266)  (55,538) (2,671)  (3,351)
Interest expense, DEt........covvi i, (458) (3,170) (2,978) (2,178)  (2,863)
Income (loss) from continuing operations,
before income taxes and extraerdinary item 24,312 (22,436)  (58,516) (4,849)  (6,214)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ......... 162 (9,843) (1,610)  (1,910)
Income (less) frem comtinuing operations .. .. 24,150 (22,436)  (48,673) (3,239)  (4,304)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of (benefit) provision for income taxes .. (5,384)  (29,440) 2,308 (2,495)
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes ...... (2,863)
Net income (foss) ........ ... ... $ 24,150 $(27,820) $(78,113) §$ (3,794) $(6,799)
Earnings (loss) per share — basic
Continuing operations, before extraordinary
ftem ... $ €58 §$§ (060) $ (145) $ (0.12) § (0.22)
Discontinued operations .................. (0.14) (0.88) 0.08 (0.13)
Extraordinary item ...................... (0.10)
$ 058 § (074) $ (2.33) $ (0.14) $ (0.35)
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For the Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2600 1999 1998
(In thousands, except per share data)

Earnings (loss) per share — diluted
Continuing operations, before extraordinary

M .o $ 049 § (0.60) $§ (145) $ (0.12) $ (0.22)
Discontinued operations . ................. (0.14) (0.88) 0.08 (0.13)
Extraordinary item ...................... (0.10)

$ 049 § (074) $ (233) $ (0.14) $ (0.35)

Cash Provided by Operating Activities........ $ 20,758 § 18,230 $ 12,756 $ 3421 $ 5,101

December 31,
2002 2001 2060 199% 1998
(In thousands)

Bzalance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents .................. $ 39474 $12988 § 5969 $ 14309 §$ 8,669
Working capital (deficit) ................... 27,220 (914)  (11,144) 25,993 (2,564)
Total assets ...........ccovviiiiiinnn. 117,131 92,949 145,994 196,271 196,940
Total long-termdebt....................... £8,941 30,553 37,784 32,142 69,961
Convertible, redeemable preferred stock

issuable............. ... . . i, 10,000 8,501
Stockholders’ equity ....................... 60,433 26,060 58,450 135,339 22,772

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results

Please see Part I, Item 1 above for an important discussion about forward-looking statements and risk
factors that may affect future results.

Overview

VitalWorks Inc. is a leading provider of information management technology and services targeted to
healthcare practices and organizations throughout the United States. We provide 1T-based solutions for
general medical practices and have specialty-specific products and services for practices such as radiology,
anesthesiology, ophthalmology, emergency medicine, plastic surgery, and dermatology. We also offer enter-
prise-level systems designed for large physician groups and networks. Our range of software solutions, which
include workflow features related to patient encounters, automate the administrative, financial, and clinical
information management functions for physicians and other healthcare providers. We provide our clients with
ongoing software support, implementation, training, electronic data interchange, or EDI, services for patient
billing and claims processing, and a variety of Web-based services.

Software license fees and system revenues are derived from the sale of software product licenses and
computer hardware. Maintenance and services revenues come from providing ongoing product support,
implementation, training and transaction processing services. Approximately 60% of our total revenues are of a
recurring nature.

We market our products and services primarily to three types of physician practices:
» ambulatory imaging centers and radiology practices, as well as anesthesiology practices;

= large general and emergency medicine practices, such as physician networks, clinics and management
service organizations that include ten or more doctors; and
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o small group practices of fewer than ten doctors that serve a local community, including ophthalmology,
dermatology and general medicine practices.

In 2002, approximately 40% of our revenues were derived from the radiology/anesthesiology market and
30% from each of our other markets. Approximately an equal amount of revenues was derived from each of
these three markets in 2001. Revenues from the small group market are skewed more toward maintenance and
services.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Year Ended December 31,
2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
(dollars in thousands)

Maintenance and Services .......... ... $84,808 (0.4)% $85,181 6.5% $79,984
Percentage of total revenues ....................... 73.9% 79.6% 78.7%
Software licenses and system sales.................. $30,003 37.2% $21,872 09% $21,682
Percentage of total revenues .. ........... ... ... 26.1% 20.4% 21.3%

We recognize software license revenues and system (computer hardware) sales upon execution of the
sales contract and delivery of the software (off-the-shelf application software) and/or hardware. In all cases,
however, the fee must be fixed or determinable, collection of any related receivable must be considered
probable, and no significant post-contract obligations of ours shall be remaining. Otherwise, we defer the sale
until all of the requirements for revenue recognition have been satisfied. Maintenance fees for routine client
support and unspecified product updates are recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance arrange-
ment. Training, implementation and EDI services revenues are recognized as the services are performed. Most
of our sales and licensing contracts involve multiple elements, in which case, we allocate the total value of the
customer arrangement to cach element based on the relative fair values of the respective elements. The
residual method is used to determine revenue recognition with respect to a multiple element arrangement
when specific objective evidence of fair value exists for all of the undelivered elements (e.g., implementation,
training and maintenance services), but does not exist for one or more of the delivered elements of the
contract (e.g., computer software or hardware). The fair value of an element is determined by the average
price charged when that element is sold separately (e.g., the fair value of maintenance services is determined
based on the average renewal price charged to clients for continued maintenance). If evidence of fair value
cannot be established for the undelivered element(s) of an arrangement, the total value of the customer
arrangement is deferred until the undelivered element(s) is delivered or until objective evidence of fair value
is established. In our contracts and arrangements with our customers, we generally do not include acceptance
provisions, which would give the customer the right to accept or reject the product after we ship it. However, if
an acceptance provision is included, revenue is recognized upon the customer’s acceptance of the product,
which occurs upon the earlier of receipt of a written customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance
period. We provide allowances for estimated future returns and discounts (recorded as contra-revenue), as
well as bad debts, upon recognition of revenues.

Recognition of revenues in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make judgments that affect the timing and amount of reported revenues.

If we were to adopt new, or change our current, business practices in response to a preference from the
market or otherwise, then our revenue recognition practices may be subject to significant change to comply
with the requisite accounting principles. For example, subscription type arrangements and practices strictly for
software services and support would result in the recognition of revenues ratably over the term of the
arrangement.

Excluding EDI services revenues of $1.6 million recognized in 2001 in connection with the settlement of
a contract dispute with an EDI supplier, maintenance and services revenues in 2002 increased $1.2 million.
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The increase is primarily attributable to (i) an increase in training and implementation services revenues of
$2.5 million, corresponding to the favorable trend in sales of software licenses and systems, and (ii) additional
EDI revenues, net of customer attrition, of approximately $2.4 million, which reflect the conversion of a
number of customer accounts to direct billing by us for printing services performed by certain third parties
that, in the first nine months of 2001, had been billed directly by the printing vendors. Our revised agreements
with these printers now call for us to bill our physician practices directly for printing services and, in turn,
remit a specified dollar amount per page to the printer. Accordingly, based on the amended agreements, we
recognize 100% of our direct billings as revenue, compared to an amount that previously was net of the
printers’ fees. Moreover, the increases were partly offset by (i) the loss of revenues totaling $2.8 million earned
in 2001 under agreements to promote third-party product and services, which agreements were terminated in
2001, and (ii) a $.9 million decline in maintenance revenues related to customer attrition.

The increase in maintenance and services revenues in 2001 is mainly attributable to (i) EDI services
revenues of $1.6 million recognized in July 2001 in connection with the contract settlement referred to above,
(ii) an increase in maintenance fees of approximately $.7 million resulting from price increases that took
effect primarily in the second half of the year, and (iii) additional EDI revenues of approximately $1.4 million
that arose primarily in the fourth quarter from the conversion of a number of customer accounts to direct
billing by us for printing services performed by certain third parties that in prior periods had been billed
directly by the printing vendors.

Software license and system revenues rose in 2002 primarily as a result of an increase in the number of
licenses and systems sold (unit volume versus, for example, price increases). This increase was led by software
sales made primarily to ambulatory imaging centers and radiology practices.

We operate with a minimal amount of software licensing and system sales backlog. Therefore, quarterly
and annual revenues and operating results are highly dependent on the volume and timing of the signing of
license agreements and product deliveries during each quarter. A significant portion of our quarterly sales of
software product licenses and computer hardware is concluded in the last month of the fiscal quarter, generally
with a concentration of our quarterly revenues earned in the final ten business days of that month. Also, our
projections for revenues and operating results include significant sales of new product and service offerings,
including our new radiology information system, or RIS, and sales and services related to the implementation
of HIPAA, which may not be realized. Due to these and other factors, our revenues and operating results are
very difficult to forecast. As a result, comparison of our period-to-period financial performance is not
necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indicator of future performance.

In 2001, software license and system revenues rose slightly primarily due to an increase in the number of
licenses and systems sold. The unit volume increase was realized in the last three quarters of the year. In the
first quarter, we experienced a decline in the number of licenses and systems sold, which was the near-term
result of management’s reorganization and redeployment of the sales force and redirection of our marketing
focus that was initiated in fiscal 2000.

Cost of Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Maintenance and services . .................... $21,970 13.2%  $19,401 (2.3)% $19,861
Percentage of maintenance and services revenues. . 25.9% 22.8% 24.8%
Software licenses and system sales . ............. $ 8,749 39.6% $ 6,267 (29.5)% $ 8,386
Percentage of software licenses and system sales .. 29.2% 28.7% 41.0%

Cost of maintenance and services revenues consists primarily of the cost of EDI claims processing,
outsourced hardware maintenance and billing and statement printing services, and postage. The increase in
2002 principally reflects additional costs of EDI services incurred in connection with the conversion of a
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number of customers to direct billing for printing services, as discussed above regarding EDI revenues. In
addition, in 2001 we recovered certain EDI processing costs and recognized a credit of $.6 million in
connection with the contract settlement referred to above.

The decrease in the cost of maintenance and services revenues in 2001 primarily refiects the recovery of
certain EDI processing costs of $.6 million referred to above, a decline in hardware maintenance costs of
approximately $.6 million, and reductions in the per transaction cost of providing patient statement, invoicing
and claims processing services. The decreases were partially offset by additional costs of EDI services of
approximately $.9 million incurred primarily in the fourth quarter in connection with the conversion of a
number of customers to direct billing by us for printing services, as discussed above regarding EDI revenues.

Cost of software license and system revenues consists primarily of costs incurred to purchase computer
hardware, third-party software and other items for resale in connection with sales of new systems and software
and, in 2002, amortization of product development costs. The increase in 2002 is mainly attributable to
$1.2 million in additional costs associated with an increase in the number of computer hardware units sold,
and amortization of product development costs of $.9 million.

In 2001, the decrease in the cost of software licenses and system revenues principally reflects a decline in

the number of computer hardware units sold which generally yield lower margins compared to software sales.

Operating Expenses
Year Ended December 31,

2002 Change 2001 Change 2006
(dollars in theusands)

Selling, general and administrative . ........... .. 849,716 (8.6)% $54,371 (23.1)% $70,688
Percentage of total revenues ................... 43.3% 50.8% 69.5%
Research and development .................... $13,535 245%  $10,871 (21.4)% $13,833
Percentage of total revenues ............... R 11.8% 10.2% 13.6%
Depreciation and amortization ................. $ 2,572 (90.2)% $26,207 (6.3)% $27,966
Percentage of total revenues ................... 2.2% 24.5% 27.5%

Selling, general and administrative expenses include fixed and variable compensation and benefits of all
personnel other than research and development personnel, facilities, travel, communications, bad debt, legal,
marketing, insurance and other administrative expenses. The decreases in both 2002 and 2001 are related to
the savings that resulted from a major restructuring plan that we initiated in August 2000. We closed 14
offices, the last five of which were closed in March and April 2001, and our employee-base average was
reduced to 639 for 2002, from 671 for 2001 and 882 for 2000. The decrease in 2002 also reflects declines in
legal fees of $2.0 million, bad debt expense of $.6 million and contract labor costs of $.5 million.

The increase in research and development expenses in 2002 is mainly attributable to additional personnel
costs and third-party software developer fees associated with our expanded product research and development
activities. In 2002 and 2001, we capitalized $4.8 million (or 26.1% of total research and development
expenditures) and $4.6 million (or 29.7% of total research and development expenditures) of third-party
programmer fees, respectively, in conformity with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” The amounts
capitalized relate to our development of Web-based applications, including a radiology information system, or
RIS, which is a workflow solution for medical imaging centers. We amortize capitalized software development
costs over the estimated economic life of the products. Depending on the nature and success of the product,
we generally expect to amortize these deferred costs over a three to five-year period. Amortization commences
when the product is made commercially available. Two of the five products under development were made
commercially available in 2002. We expect the remaining products to become commercially available in 2003.
The decrease in research and development expenses in 2001 reflects the reduction in staff that commenced in
August 2000 as part of the restructuring plan.
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In 2001 and 2000, depreciation and amortization expense consisted mainly of $23.1 million and
$23.2 million of goodwill amortization, respectively. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense in
2002 is due primarily to the cessation of goodwill amortization in conformity with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement 142, which provides that, upon adoption, we shall no longer amortize our
goodwill assets. Rather, we are required to test these assets for impairment of value on at least an annual basis.
Pursuant to Statement 142, we discontinued amortizing goodwill on January 1, 2002. The adoption of
Statement 142 has not had a negative impact on our financial statements. The decrease in depreciation and
amortization expense in 2001 pertains to the closing of office facilities in connection with the restructuring
plan.

Loss On Headquarters Building Held for Sale. In 2001, we recorded an impairment charge of
$1.4 million relating to our former headquarters building in Atlanta. We sold the building in August 2002 for
proceeds of $6.3 million, after closing costs. A portion of the proceeds from the sale was used to repay the
$5.5 million mortgage loan on the building. Approximately $.4 million of the proceeds is being held in escrow
to partially guarantee to the new owner the monetary performance of PracticeWorks, Inc., a tenant of the
building, through December 2003 under their lease agreement. We spun-off PracticeWorks in March 2001. In
connection with the sale, we entered into a market rate lease with the new owner of the building ending
December 2003 for approximately 3,900 square feet of office space, or less than 5% of the building. In 2002,
we recognized a gain of $.1 million from the sale of the building (included in selling, general and
administrative expenses). The amount held in escrow has been deferred and may be recognized in 2003.

Impairment Charges (Credits) and Other Nonrecurring Costs. In the June and September 2002
quarters, we received final payments from three former directors satisfying their outstanding loans from us,
including interest. Consequently, we recorded a credit of $6.0 million, reflecting a complete reversal of the
allowance for loan losses established in March 2001.

In 2001, we recognized impairment charges and incurred other nonrecurring costs of $8.3 million. These
costs and expenses included the $6.0 million provision for loan losses relating to the notes receivable from
former directors, $.9 million for unused equity financing (paid in 2002), $.8 million of executive severance for
separation benefits paid to our former chairman pursuant to the terms of a mutual separation agreement and a
pre-existing employment agreement, and retention bonuses of $.2 million for terminated employees. As of
March 31, 2001, management determined that collection was doubtful with respect to approximately
$6 million of the outstanding balance of the director loans and, accordingly, we recorded a valuation allowance
and ceased accruing interest on the loans.

In 2000, concurrent with the 2000 restructuring plan, we recognized impairment charges and incurred
other nonrecurring costs of $6.6 million consisting of (i) $3.5 million relating to fixed assets that were
abandoned due to the closing of facilities; (ii) $1.1 million to write-down computer hardware held for resale to
its estimated net realizable value based on a planned bulk lot disposal as a result of our decision to discontinue
selling hardware and hardware support in certain of our business lines; (iii) $1.3 million for compensation and
other termination benefits; (iv) $.4 million for other asset write-downs; and (v) $.3 million for professional
services and other related costs.

Restructuring Costs (Credits). On August 1, 2000, we announced our intention to restructure our
operations through a plan of employee reductions and consolidation of office facilities. Since then, we closed
14 facilities and terminated approximately 400 employees. The offices that were closed are subject to operating
leases that expire at various dates through 2005. Accordingly, in 2000 we incurred restructuring charges of
$9.3 million primarily associated with employee severance and other termination benefits, and facility closure
costs. In 2001, we recorded $.4 million resulting from credits for changes in accounting estimates relating to
facility closure and employee severance costs incurred in 2000. In 2002, we recognized an additional credit of
$.5 million reflecting a savings in connection with the early termination of an office lease for a facility closed in
March 2001 as part of the restructuring.
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Interest Income (Expense)
Year Ended December 31,

2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
(dollars in thousands)
INterest MCOMIE . . v v v vt i e et et e ie e e aans $1,480 163.3% $ 3562 (193)% $ 696
Interest eXpense . ....... ..ot (1,938)  (48.1)% (3,732) 1.6%  (3,674)

The increase in interest income in 2002 reflects interest of $1.1 million not previously recognized on the
notes receivable from former directors. In the June and September 2002 quarters, we received final payments
from the former directors satisfying their outstanding loans, including interest.

Interest expense consists primarily of interest costs incurred in connection with our outstanding term loan
and real estate mortgage loans. As of August 2002, the mortgage loans have been repaid in full. The decrease
in interest expense in 2002 is due to a decline in both the outstanding principal balances and associated
interest rates under our credit agreement.

Income Taxes

For 2002, we recorded an income tax provision of $.2 million. No income tax provision or benefit was
recognized in 2001. Due to the significant loss generated in 2000, we recognized an income tax benefit of
$9.8 million.

Management has assessed the realizable value of our deferred tax assets of $55.4 million and determined
that a valuation allowance of $25.3 million was necessary as of December 31, 2002 to, along with deferred tax
liabilities of $3.3 million, reduce the net deferred tax asset to $26.8 million, an amount which we believe is
more likely than not to be realized. In reaching this conclusion, management noted that internal projections
indicate that we will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the net deferred tax assets within three to
four years.

Qur effective income tax rate was less than 2% for 2002 and is expected to remain at less than 2% for
2003 due primarily to utilization of net operating loss carryforwards.
Loss from Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations represent the results of PracticeWorks, Inc., a provider of practice management
software for dental and oral surgery practices, through March S, 2001. On that date, we distributed 100% of
the common stock of PracticeWorks to our stockholders. For the period January 1, 2001 to March 3, 2001 and
for the year ended December 31, 2000, our net loss from discontinued operations was $5.4 million and
$29.4 million, respectively. For further details regarding the distribution of shares of PracticeWorks to our
stockholders, see Note C of the accompanying financial statements.

Net Income (Loss)

As a result of the above factors, our operating results for 2002 increased to net income of $24.2 million
from a net loss of $(27.8) million in 2001 and a net loss of $(78.1) million in 2000.

To date, the overall impact of inflation on us has not been material.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

To date, we have financed our business through positive cash flows from operations and proceeds from the
issuance of common stock and long-term borrowings. For 2002, 2001 and 2000, we generated positive cash
flows from operations of $20.8 million, $18.2 million and $12.8 million, respectively.

Days sales outstanding (calculated as accounts receivable, net of allowances, divided by annual revenues
multiplied by 365 days) for 2002 was 45 days, up from 43 days for 2001 and down from 52 days for 2000.
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Looking forward, assuming license and systems sales increase, we would expect our days sales outstanding to
range from 50 to 60 days.

Cash provided by investing activities amounted to $2.5 million for 2002. This total includes net proceeds
of $7.3 million from the sale of office buildings and $.3 million related to the spin-off of PracticeWorks, offset
partially by $4.3 million used for software development costs and $.8 million used primarily for purchases of
computer equipment and software.

Financing activities for 2002 provided cash of $3.2 million, consisting of: proceeds of $27.5 million
received in connection with a new four-year credit agreement, $11.0 million of loan payments received from
former directors, and $10.0 million of payments received in connection with the exercise of stock options by
employees, partly offset by $38.6 million of principal payments of long-term debt and $6.0 million of cash used
to repurchase our common stock.

As of December 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents of $39.5 million and $18.9 million of total
long-term debt. Cash equivalents are comprised primarily of investment-grade commercial paper, time
deposits, and U.S. federal, state and political subdivision obligations with varying terms of three months or
less. In March 2002, we entered into a new four-year credit agreement with Foothill Capital Corporation, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company. The new agreement included a term loan of
$22.0 million at an interest rate of prime plus 2%, and a mortgage loan of $5.5 million. We repaid the
mortgage loan in August 2002 in connection with the sale of our Atlanta property. Subject to achieving certain
specified earnings targets, the margin by which our interest rate on the term loan exceeds prime may be
reduced by as much as 1.1% over the life of the loan. Interest is payable monthly in arrears. Principal is
payable over the life of the agreement, including a balloon payment in March 2006. Should we decide to
prepay the term loan in full prior to year four, we would incur a prepayment fee equal to 2% in year two and
1% in year three of the then outstanding principal balance of the term loan. The prepayment fee may be
reduced should the loan be prepaid in connection with a change of control of VitalWorks. The loans, which are
collateralized by substantially all of our assets and intellectual property rights, subject us to certain restrictive
covenants, including (i) the required maintenance of minimum levels of recurring revenues and earnings, as’
defined, (ii) an annual limit on the amount of capital expenditures, and (iii) the prohibition of dividend
payments to shareholders.

The following table summarizes, as of December 31, 2002, the general timing of future payments under
our outstanding loan agreement and under lease agreements that include noncancellable terms.

Payments Due by Period

Totals 2003 . 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
(in thousands)
Long-termdebt........................ $18,250 $3,750  $2,500 $12,000
Operating leases ....................... 8,234 2,557 1,881  $1,352 1,341 $1,103
Capital leases . ........................ 691 550 127 14

$27,175 $6,857 $4,508 $1,366  $13,341 $1,103

In May 2002, we entered into a five-year agreement with a third-party provider of EDI services for
patient claims processing. For the first year of the agreement, we are committed to pay $.5 million for
processing services. Thereafter, the annual services fee will range from $.5 million to $.8 million based on our
volume usage in the last month of the preceding year.

In connection with our employee savings plan, we have committed, for the 2003 plan year, to contribute
to the plan. Our matching contribution, estimated to be approximately $.8 million, will be made half in cash
and half in shares of our common stock.

In October 2001, we expanded our August 2000 agreement with National Data Corporation, or NDC, for
outsourcing much of our patient statement and invoice printing work. We will continue, for a fee, to provide
printing services for our physicians under the subcontracting arrangement with NDC. The amended
arrangement, which extends for a period of up to seven and a half years, provides for, among other things, the
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attainment of certain quarterly transaction processing volume levels during the term. In exchange, we received
$7.9 million in cash (in connection with the August agreement, we received $8.8 million in 2000), which
represent unearned discounts (see accompanying balance sheet) that are recognized as an offset to cost of
maintenance and services revenues as the minimum volume commitments are fulfilled.

We anticipate capital expenditures of approximately $5 million for 2003, including software development
costs of approximately $3 million. We intend to review potential strategic acquisitions and other business
alliances.

In October 2002, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $15 million of our common
stock from time to time. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased are determined by management
based on our evaluation of market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program may be suspended or
discontinued at any time. Repurchased shares are available for use in connection with stock plans and for
other corporate purposes. The repurchase program is funded using our existing cash resources. As of
March 24, 2003, we repurchased 1,873,002 shares of our common stock under the program for an aggregate
cost of $6.0 milifon.

From time to time, in the normal course of business, various claims are made against us. Except for
proceedings described below, there are no material proceedings to which we are a party, and management is
unaware of any material contemplated actions against us.

On February 27, 2003, a purported class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for
the District of Connecticut against VitalWorks Inc. and three of our executive officers. The action was brought
by plaintiff Bernard Frazier, on behalf of purchasers of our securities between April 24, 2002 and October 23,
2002 (the “Class Period”). The complaint alleges, among other things, violations of Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 10b-5 promuigated thereunder and breach of fiduciary duties. The
complaint alleges that the defendants made misleading statements and omissions regarding our business and
operations, principally in press releases and public conference calls in April 2002 and July 2002, which
allegedly had the effect of artificially inflating the market price of our common stock during the Class Period,
and that six of our officers, including the defendant officers, sold shares of our common stock during the
Class Period. The plaintiff seeks recovery of an unstated amount of compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and
costs. We understand that an additional lawsuit or lawsuits containing substantially similar causes of action as
the above referenced matter has been filed against us, although we have not yet been served with any
complaint.

On April 19, 2001, a lawsuit styled David and Susan Jones v. InfoCure Corporation (now known as
VitalWorks Inc.), et al., was filed in Boone County Superior Court in Indiana. The defendants removed the
case to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. The complaint alleges state
securities law violations, breach of contract, and fraud claims against the defendants. The complaint does not
specify the amount of damages sought by plaintiffs, but seeks rescission of a transaction that the plaintiffs
value at $5 million, as well as punitive damages and reimbursement for the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and
associated costs and expenses of the lawsuit. In a decision from the Court dated October 15, 2001, the
plaintiffs’ request for a preliminary injunction to preserve their remedy of rescission was denied, part of their
complaint was dismissed and the case was transferred to the Northern District Court of Georgia. On
October 26, 2001, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal with the 7th Circuit Court of Appeals. On November 8,
2002, the 7th Circuit Court affirmed the denial of the preliminary injunction and dismissed the remainder of
the appeal. The case is now pending in the Northern District Court of Georgia and the plaintiffs have obtained
leave of the Court to file an amended complaint.

While management believes that we have meritorious defenses in each of the foregoing matters and we
intend to pursue our positions vigorously, litigation is inherently subject to many uncertainties. Thus, the
outcome of these matters is uncertain and could be adverse to us. However, even if the outcome of these cases
is adverse, we do not believe that the outcome of these cases, individually or in the aggregate, will have a
material adverse effect on our financial position. However, depending on the amount and timing of an
unfavorable resolution(s) of the contingencies, it is possible that our future results of operations or cash flows
could be materially affected in a particular reporting period(s). '
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We were named as a defendant as successor to CDL Healthcare Systems, Inc. (“CDL”), a company
acquired by us in December 1999, in a complaint filed in the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in
Dade County, Florida on February 27, 2001 by Sonia Abutog, individually, Angelo Abutog, individually, and
Sonia and Angelo Abutog, as parents and next best friends to Aaron Abutog, a minor. Gary Weiner, former
President of CDL, and his daughter, Elisha Weiner, were also named as defendants. Plaintiffs alleged that
they were injured at a time, prior to the merger between us and CDL, when a motor vehicle operated by Elisha
Weiner collided with plaintiff Sonia Abutog, a pedestrian. The plaintiff contended that she and her unborn
child suffered severe personal injuries as a result of the accident and sought to recover damages in an
unspecified amount in excess of $15,000, plus interest and costs. Our motion for final summary judgment
dismissing the action against us was granted by order of the Court dated July 9, 2002. The plaintiffs did not file
a Notice of Appeal of this decision and the time to do so has expired.

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalent balances, together with the funds we expect to
generate from our operations, will be sufficient to finance our business for the next twelve months, including
the repurchase, as the case may be (see discussion above regarding our stock repurchase program), of up to
$9 million of our outstanding common stock.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes, which we believe have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, assumptions
and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, allowances for future returns, discounts and bad
debts, tangible and intangible assets, deferred costs, income taxes, restructurings, commitments, contingen-
cies, claims and litigation. We base our judgments and estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. However, our actual results could differ
from those estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize software license revenues and system (computer hardware) sales
upon execution of the sales contract and delivery of the software (off-the-shelf application software)} and/or
hardware. In all cases, however, the fee must be fixed or determinable, collection of any related receivable
must be considered probable, and no significant post-contract obligations of ours shall be remaining.
Otherwise, we defer the sale until all of the requirements for revenue recognition have been satisfied.
Maintenance fees for routine client support and unspecified product updates are recognized ratably over the
term of the maintenance arrangement. Training, implementation and EDI services revenues are recognized as
the services are performed. Most of our sales and licensing contracts involve multiple elements, in which case,
we allocate the total value of the customer arrangement to each element based on the relative fair values of the
respective elements. The residual method is used to determine revenue recognition with respect to a multiple
element arrangement when specific objective evidence of fair value exists for all of the undelivered elements
(e.g., implementation, training and maintenance services), but does not exist for one or more of the delivered
elements of the contract (e.g., computer software or hardware). The fair value of an element is determined by
the average price charged when that element is sold separately (e.g., the fair value of maintenance services is
determined based on the average renewal price charged to clients for continued maintenance). If evidence of
fair value cannot be established for the undelivered clement(s) of an arrangement, the total value of the
customer arrangement is deferred until the undelivered element(s) is delivered or until objective evidence of
fair value is established. In our contracts and arrangements with our customers, we generally do not include
acceptance provisions, which would give the customer the right to accept or reject the product after we ship it.
However, if an acceptance provision is included, revenue is recognized upon the customer’s acceptance of the
product, which occurs upon the earlier of receipt of a written customer acceptance or expiration of the

34




acceptance period. We provide allowances for estimated future returns and discounts (recorded as contra-
revenue), as well as bad debts, upon recognition of revenues.

Recognition of revenues in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make judgments that affect the timing and amount of reported revenues.

Accounts Receivable. QOur accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms
carried at their face value, less allowances for estimated future returns and discounts, as well as bad debts. We
evaluate the carrying amount of our accounts receivable on an ongoing basis and establish a valuation
allowance based on a number of factors, including specific customer circumstances, historical rate of write-offs
and the past due status of the accounts. At the end of each fiscal quarter, the allowance is reviewed and
analyzed for adequacy and is often adjusted based on the findings. The allowance is increased through a
reduction of revenues, an increase in bad debt expense and/or recovery of amounts previously written-off. The
allowance is reduced by write-offs of amounts deemed uncollectible and adjustments to revenue and/or bad
debt expense, if any, based on management’s determination as to the adequacy of the recorded allowance.

Goodwill Assets and Business Combinations. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value
of net assets of businesses acquired and accounted for as purchase transactions. In 2001, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Statement 142 provides that, upon adoption, we shall no longer
amortize our goodwill assets. Rather, we are required to test our goodwill for impairment of value on at least
an annual basis. Pursuant to Statement 142, we discontinued amortizing goodwill on January 1, 2002. The
adoption of Statement 142 has not had a negative impact on our financial statements.

Excluding goodwill amortization of $23.1 million and $23.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, our net loss would have been $(4.7) million, or $(0.13) per share, and $(34.9) million, or
$(1.64) per share, respectively, compared to net income of $24.2 million, or $.49 per diluted share, for 2002.

Also in 2001, the FASB issued Statement 141, “Business Combinations.” Statement 141 requires the use
of the purchase method of accounting and prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interests method of accounting
for business combinations. Statement 141 also requires that we recognize acquired intangible assets apart from
goodwill if the acquired intangible assets meet certain criteria. Statement 141 applies to all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

Our business combinations were completed prior to 2000 and were accounted for using both the pooling-
of-interests and purchase methods. The pooling-of-interests method does not result in the recognition of
acquired goodwill or other intangible assets. As a result, the adoption of Statements 141 and 142 did not affect
the results of past transactions accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method. However, all future
business combinations would be accounted for under the purchase method, which may result in the
recognition of goodwill and other intangible assets, some of which would be recognized through operations,
either by amortization or impairment charges, in the future.

Product Development Costs. We begin capitalizing product development costs, exclusively third-party
programmer fees, only after establishing commercial and technical viability. Annual amortization of these
costs represents the greater of the amount computed using (i) the ratio that current gross revenues for the
product(s) bear to the total current and anticipated future gross revenues of the product(s), or (ii) the
straight-line method over the remaining estimated economic life of the product(s); generally, depending on
the nature and success of the product, such deferred costs are amortized over a three to five-year period.
Amortization commences when the product is made commercially available. Two of the five products under
development were made commercially available in 2002.

Stock-based Compensation. Statement 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended
by Statement 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — an amend-
ment of FASB Statement No. 123,” provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, Statement 148
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amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and
interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the
effect of the method used on reported results.

We account for stock option grants and stock awards, based on their intrinsic value, in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related
interpretations. Under the intrinsic value method, compensation expense is only recognized if the exercise
price of the employee stock option is less than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
The weighted-average estimated grant date fair value, as defined by Statement 123, of options granted in 2002,
2001 and 2000 was $2.34, $1.61 and $2.97, respectively, as calculated using the Black-Scholes option valuation
model. We price our stock options at fair market value on the date of grant, and therefore, under Opinion 25,
no compensation expense is recognized for stock options granted. The following table illustrates the effect on
income (loss) from continuing operations and the related earnings per share if we had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of Statement 123, as amended, to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands,
except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Income (loss) from continuing operations, as reported ............... $24,150  $(22,436) $(48,673)
Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

effects . (5,320) (10,374) (6,415)
Pro forma income (loss) from continuing operations ................. $18,83¢ $(32,810) $(55,088)
Earnings (loss) per share — continuing operations:

Basic — as reported .. ... e $ 058 $ (0.60) § (1.45

Basic—proforma ........ .. ... $ 645 $ (088) § (l.e4)

Diluted —asreported. ... ... . . $ 049 $ (060) $§ (1.45)

Diluted —proforma....... ... $ 639 § (0.88) § (1.64)

The fair value of our employee stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Risk-free interest Tate . ... ...ttt i e 2.6% 40% 52%
Expected dividend yield . ... ... . 0.0 0.0 0.0
Expected stock price volatility......... oo i 78.7 754 76.7
Weighted average expected life (inyears) ............co oo, 4 4 4

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was not developed for use in valuing employee stock options.
Instead, this model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable, which differ significantly from our stock option awards. In addition,
option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price
volatility.

Income Taxes. We provide for taxes based on current taxable income, and the future tax consequences
of temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax carrying values of our assets and
liabilities (deferred income taxes). Quarterly, mandgement assesses the realizable value of deferred tax assets
based on, among other things, estimates of future taxable income, and adjusts the related valuation allowance
as necessary.
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Earnings Per Share. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share (“EPS”) (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2060
Numerator — income (loss):
Continuing Operations . . ... ....vutiinn et $24,150 $(22,436) $(48,673)
Discontinued Operations ... ....... ..ttt e (5,384)  (29,440)
$24,150 $(27,820) $(78,113)
Denominator:
Basic EPS — weighted-average shares ........................... 41,592 37,477 33,537
Effect of dilutive securities, stock option and warrant rights ......... 7,258
Diluted EPS — adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed
COMVETSIONS . & o\ v et e e e et et et et e et n e it ie et 48,850 37,477 33,537
Rasic EPS:
Continuing OPerationS . . ..\ v v v oottt ettt e $ 058 $§ (0.60) $ (1.45)
Discontinued operations ... ..........iii i (0.14) (0.88)

$ 658 § (074) § (2.33)

Diluted EPS:
Continuing operations . ................. e $ 049 $ (060) $ (1.45)
Discontinued operations . ....... ... ... i i (0.14) (0.88)

$ 049 $ (0.74) $ (233)

Because their effect would be antidilutive, stock option and warrant rights for up to 1.1 million common
shares with exercise prices ranging from $6.14 to $17.31 per share were excluded from the diluted EPS
calculation for 2002. For the same reason, all options and warrants were excluded from the diluted calculation
for years 2001 and 2000.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.”
Statement 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are
incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by
Statement 146 include lease termination costs and certain employee severance costs that are associated with a
restructuring, discontinued operation, facility closing, or other exit or disposal activity. Statement 146 is to be
applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 1435, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 62,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical Corrections.” For most companies, Statement 145
will require gains and losses on extinguishments of debt to be classified as income or loss from continuing
operations rather than as extraordinary items as previously required under Statement 4. Extraordinary
treatment will be required for certain extinguishments as provided in Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30. Statement 145 also amends Statement 13 for certain sales-leaseback and sublease accounting. We are
required to adopt the provisions of Statement 145 in January 2003. Except for a reclassification with respect to
our 1999 statement of operations, we believe the adoption of Statement 145 will not have a significant impact
on our financial statements.

In 2001, the FASB issued Statement 141, “Business Combinations.” Statement 141 requires the use of
the purchase method of accounting and prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for
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business combinations. Statement 141 also requires us to recognize acquired intangible assets apart from
goodwill if the acquired intangible assets meet certain criteria. Statement 141 applies to all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. It also requires that, upon adoption of Statement 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” (adoption of Statement 142 is discussed in the operating expenses section
above), we reclassify the carrying amounts of intangible assets and goodwill based on the criteria in
Statement 141.

Our business combinations were completed prior to 2000 and were accounted for using both the pooling-
of-interests and purchase methods. The pooling-of-interests method does not result in the recognition of
acquired goodwill or other intangible assets. As a result, the adoption of Statements 141 and 142 did not affect
the results of past transactions accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method. However, all future
business combinations would be accounted for under the purchase method, which may result in the
recognition of goodwill and other intangible assets, some of which would be recognized through operations,
either by amortization or impairment charges, in the future.

Also in 2001, the FASB issued Statement 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” The adoption of Statement 144 has not had a negative impact on our financial statements.

Statement 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, such as foreign currency and interest rate
swaps, options, forwards, futures, collars, and warrants, and for hedging activities. We do not hold derivative
securities and have not entered into contracts embedded with derivative instruments either to hedge existing
risks or for speculative purposes.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our primary market risk consists of fluctuations in the “prime rate” of interest announced from time to
time by Wells Fargo Bank N.A. Approximately $18.3 million of our outstanding debt at December 31, 2002
related to long-term indebtedness under our credit agreement with Foothill Capital Corporation, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company. We expect interest on the outstanding balance of the loan to be
charged based on a variable rate related to the prime rate. Thus, our interest expense is subject to market risk
in the form of fluctuations in the prime rate of interest. The effect of a hypothetical one hundred basis point
increase across all maturities of variable rate debt would result in an annual decrease of approximately
$.2 million in pre-tax operating results assuming no further changes in the amount of our borrowings subject to
variable rate interest from amounts outstanding at December 31, 2002. We do not hold derivative securities
and have not entered into contracts embedded with derivative instruments, such as foreign currency and
interest rate swaps, options, forwards, futures, collars, and warrants, either to hedge existing risks or for
speculative purposes.

item 8. Financigl Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements listed on page 43 of this report are filed as part of this report on the pages
indicated.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountanis on Accounnting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART II

Certain information required by Part III of this Form 10-K is omitted because the Company will file a
definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A with respect to the 2003 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders expected to be held on June 11, 2003 (the “Proxy Statement”), not later than 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Formm 10-K, and certain information to be included therein is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The response to this item is contained in part under the caption “Employees” in Part I hereof, and the
remainder is contained in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Election of Directors”, and is incorporated
herein by reference. Information relating to delinquent filings of Forms 3, 4, and 5 of the Company is
contained in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934”, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The response to this item is contained in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Compensation of
Directors”, “Executive Compensation and Related Information”, “Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year”,
“Aggregate Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Year-End Option Values”, and “Employment Contracts
and Change of Control Arrangements”, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The response to this item is contained in the Proxy Statement in part under the caption “Stock
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and in part under the caption “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” and is incorporated herein by reference.

ftem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The response to this item is contained in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Certain Transactions”
and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Based on their evaluation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms and are operating in an effective manner.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls. There were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their most recent evaluation.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financiel Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The financial statements listed on page 43 of this report are filed as part
of this report on the pages indicated.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules. The applicable financial statement schedules required under
Regulation S-X have been included beginning on page 69 of this report, as follows:

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Financial Statement
Schedule . . ... .. 69
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(a) (3) Exhibits. The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-X are listed below.

Exhibit
No. Description
2.1 — Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Datamedic Helding Corp., Certain Principal
Shareholders of Datamedic Holding Corp., InfoCure Corporation and InfoCure Systems, Inc.
dated September 3, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to InfoCure’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-87867) filed on September 27, 1999).

2.2 — Agreement and Plan of Distribution, dated as of February 21, 2001, by and between InfoCure
Corporation and PracticeWorks, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

3.1 — Certificate of Incorporation of InfoCure Corporation with all amendments (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999).

3.2 — Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of InfoCure (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

4.1 — See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and
Bylaws of InfoCure defining rights of the holders of common stock of InfoCure.

4.2 — Specimen Certificate for shares of common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
InfoCure’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2) (Registration No. 333-18923).

10.1 — InfoCure Corporation 1996 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed
with InfoCure’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2) (Registration No. 333-18923).

10.2 — Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement of InfoCure Corporation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 filed with InfoCure’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2) (Registration
No. 333-18923).

10.3 — InfoCure Corporation 1997 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.48 filed with InfoCure’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB on April 1, 1998).

10.4 — InfoCure Corporation Length-of-Service Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.49 filed with InfoCure’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB on April 1,
1998).

10.5 — Amendment to InfoCure Corporation 1996 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999).

10.6 — Amendment to InfoCure Corporation Length-of-Service Nonqualified Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1999).

10.7 — Amendment to InfoCure Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999).

10.8 — InfoCure Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.50 filed with InfoCure’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB on April 1, 1998).

10.9 — Form of Stock Option Grant Certificate and schedule of recipients of such options (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999),

10.10 — Form of Stock Option Grant Certificate and schedule of recipients of such options (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear
ended December 31, 1999).
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Exhibit
No. Description

10.11 — Tax Disaffiliation Agreement, dated as of March §, 2001, by and between InfoCure Corporation
and PracticeWorks, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.12 — Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement, dated as of March 5, 2001, by and
between InfoCure Corporation and PracticeWorks, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
March 20, 2001).

10.13 — Intellectual Property License Agreement, dated as of March 5, 2001, by and between InfoCure
Corporation and PracticeWorks Systems, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(a) to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.14 — Intellectual Property License Agreement, dated as of March 5, 2001, by and between InfoCure
Corporation and PracticeWorks Systems, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.15 — Assignment of Copyrights, dated as of March 5, 2001, by and between InfoCure Corporation
and PracticeWorks Systems, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(c) to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.16 — Assignment of Trademarks, dated as of March 5, 2001, by and between InfoCure Corporation
and PracticeWorks Systems, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(d) to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.17 — Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2000, by and between InfoCure Corporation and Joseph
M. Walsh (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(a) to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.18 — Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2000, by and between InfoCure Corporation and Steven
N. Kahane (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(c) to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.19 — Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2000, by and between InfoCure Corporation and
Michael A. Manto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6(d) to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 20, 2001).

10.20 — InfoCure Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000).

10.21 — Amended and Restated Warrant, originally issued to Crescent International Ltd. on
September 28, 1998, as amended and restated on March 6, 2001 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.44 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Commission on
April 2, 2001).

10.22 — SubLease Agreement, dated February 28, 2001, by and between InfoCure Corporation and
Southern Company Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission on May 16, 2001).

10.23 — Lease Agreement, dated March 13, 2001, by and between InfoCure Corporation and Joseph V.
Fisher, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission on May 16, 2001).

10.24 — Separation Agreement by and between InfoCure Corporation, and Frederick L. Fine, dated
June 6, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on June 6, 2001).

10.25 — Loan and Security Agreement by and among VitalWorks Inc. as Borrower, and Foothill Capital
Corporation as Lender, dated March 8, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-X, filed with the Commission on March 29, 2002).
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Exhibit
No. Description

10.26 — VitalWorks Inc. 401 (k) Profit Sharing Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Commission on August 13, 2002).

10.27 — VitalWorks Inc. 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q), filed with the Commission on August 13,
2002).

10.28 — Rights Agreement, dated as of December 5, 2002 (the “Rights Agreement”), between
VitalWorks Inc. and StockTrans, Inc., as Rights Agent, including as Exhibit B, the form of
Rights Certificate and Election to Exercise (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 9, 2002).

10.29 — Form of Letter to Stockholders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 20 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 9, 2002).

10.30 — Form of Certificate of Designations of Series B Preferred Stock, included in Exhibit C to the
Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the Registrant’s Report on
Form 8-A12B, filed with the Commission on January 3, 2003).

*21.1 — List of Subsidiaries.
*23.1 — Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP, independent certified public accountants.
24.1 — Powers of Attorney (included on signature page).
*99.1 — Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith

(b) Reports On Form 8-K. We filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the quarter ended
December 31, 2002:

(i) Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 6, 2002 with respect to our announcement that our Board of Directors has
authorized the repurchase of up to $15 million of our common stock from time to time.

(ii) Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 9, 2002 with respect to our announcement that we adopted a Stockholder Rights

Plan and declared a dividend of one Right on each share of our common stock.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
VitalWorks Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VitalWorks Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes ¢xamining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of VitalWorks Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

BDO Seidman, LLP
New York, New York

January 20, 2003,
February 27, 2003 for Note H
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VEITALWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ....... .. ... . . . $ 39474 $§ 12,983
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,900 and $1,800................. 14,130 12,693
Computer hardware held forresale ........ .. ... .. . i 629 323
Deferred income taxes, et .. ... ... it 1,578 3,376
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................ ... .. ... 1,660 946
Headquarters buildings held for sale, at fairvalue.......................... 7,184
Total Current @SSetS. . .. oot 57,471 37,510
Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization
of §9,026 and 86,2094 .. ... ... 4,542 6,435
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $55,898 through 2001 .............. 20,256 20,256
Product development and deferred finance costs, less accumulated amortization of
$1,049 and $905 . . ... 9,049 4,739
Deferred income taxes, NEt . . ... ittt 25,172 23,358
L8 7§15 o 3Tt - 641 651
Total ASSEES . .\ ottt $ 117,131 $ 92,949
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued €Xpenses . ... ... ... $ 10,630 $ 10,503
Accrued employee compensation and benefits .......... ... ... 4,636 2,862
Accrued TestruCtUrINg COSTS .« . .« v ittt e et ens 1,107 2,900
Deferred revenue, including unearned discounts of $1,478 and $1,701 ......... 9,578 8,096
Current portlon of long-term debt .......... ... ... ... 4,300 14,063
Total current fiabilities. .. ... ... ... ... .. . . 30,251 38,424
Long-term debt . ... ... . 14,641 16,490
Other liabilities, primarily unearned discounts re: outsourced printing services . . . . 11,806 11,975
Commitments and contingencies — Notes C and H
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock $.001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued. .. ...
Common stock $.001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 44,605,944 and
39,001,771 shares issued .. ... ..t 45 39
Additional paid-in capital ........ ... . . . 203,173 191,585
Notes receivable from former directors, net of allowance of $6,000 in 2001 . ... (4,632)
Accumulated deficit. .. ... .. (136,313) (160,463)
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,985,502 and 112,500 shares. ...................... (6,472) (469)
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... ... . i 60,433 26,060
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........ ..., $ 117,131 $ 92,949

See accompanying notes.
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VITALWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Im thousands, except per share data)

Revenues
Maintenance and services
Software licenses and system sales ........... ... ... . i

Total TeVenuUes . ... ..ot

Costs and expenses
Cost of revenues:
Maintenance and services
Software licenses and system sales, includes amortization of product
development costs of $911in 2002 ......... ... ... .. ... .. ... ....
Selling, general and administrative . ................ .. .
Research and development
Depreciation and amortization, includes $23,135 and $23,228 of goodwill
amortization in 2001 and 2000
Loss on headquarters building held forsale..........................
Impairment charges (credits) and other nonrecurring costs
Restructuring costs (credits) ... . ... .. o

Operating income (loss)
Interest inCOME .. ... i e
Interest eXPense. . . .. e

Income (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes........
Provision (benefit} for income taxes

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax benefit of $4,399 in
2000

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic:
Continuing OperationS . .. .. ..ottt e
Discontinued operations .............. e

Diluted:
Continuing Operations. ... ..o\ vet it
Discontinued operations .. ........ ...t

Average number of shares outstanding
BasiC . o
Diluted ... ..o

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
$ 84,808 $ 85,181 § 79,984
30,003 21,872 21,682
114,811 107,053 101,666
21,970 19,401 19,861
8749 6,267 8,886
49,716 54,371 70,688
13,535 10,871 13,833
2,572 26,207 27,966

1,375

(6,000) 8,252 6,632
(501)  (425) 9,338
90,041 126,319 157,204
24,770 (19,266) (55,538)
1,480 562 696
(1,938)  (3,732)  (3,674)
24,312 (22,436) (58,516)
162 (9,843)
24,150 (22,436) (48,673)
(5,384)  (29,440)
$ 24,150 $(27,820) $(78,113)
0.58 $ (0.60) $ (1.45)
(0.14)  (0.88)
058 $ (0.74) § (2.33)
049 § (0.60) $ (1.45)
(0.14)  (0.88)
049 $ (074) $ (2.33)
41,592 37477 33,537
48,850 37,477 33,537




VITALWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Ir thousands, except share data)

Shares - Notes
Additional Receivable-
Common Treasury  Common  Paid-In Former Accumulated  Treasury
Stock Stock Stock Capital Directors Deficit Stock Total
Balance at December 31, 1999 . ... .. 32,202,099 $32 $189,837 $ (54,530) $135,339
Issuance of common stock, net of
related expense for: ‘
2000 acquisition attributed to
PracticeWorks ................. 127,660 2,386 2,386
Earnout commitments ............ 35,384 1,100 1,100
Payment of obligations .. .......... 68,563 418 418
Exercise of stock options and
Warrants ... ... .. 1,723,911 2 1,588 1,590
Matching contribution 401 (k) plan 97,508 1,469 1,469
Tax benefit from the exercise of
OPHONS ... ..ot 1,413 1,413
1999 acquisition escrow closure....... (18,890) (390) (390)
Treasury stock received in exchange for
sale of license agreement .......... (112,500) $ (469) (469)
Purchase price protection of previous
share issuance ................... (500) (500)
Receipt of note from former directors
for exercise of stock options plus
accrued interest .................. 6,564 § (6,974) (410)
Issuance of promissory note from
former directors plus accrued
interest, net of repayment ......... (5,457) (5,457)
Other ... ... . 74 74
Netloss ..o i L, . (78,113) (78,113)
Balance at December 31, 2000 ... .. .. 34,236,235 (112,500) 34 203,959 (12,431)  (132,643) (469) 58,450
Issuance of common stock, net of
related expense for:
1998 acquisition of unit of Reynolds
& Reynolds ................... 500,000 1 127 128
Matching contribution 401 (k) plan 462,352 1,965 1,965
Conversion of rights to preferrcd
stock of subsidiary.............. 1,929,012 2 9,998 10,000
Exercise of stock options and
WAITANES .. ..o e 974,645 1 1,882 1,883
1999 acquisition attributed to
PracticeWorks . ................ 887,715 1 2,327 2,328
Other ... ... i 11,812 254 254
Dividend of subsidiary, PracticeWorks . . (28,927) (28,927)
Allowance for loan losses............ 6,000 6,000
Loan payments, net ................ 1,799 1,799
Netdoss ..ot . (27,820} (27,820)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ....... 39,001,771 (112,500) 39 191,585 (4,632)  (160,463) (469) 26,060
Issuance of common stock, net of
related expense for:
Matching contribution 401 (k) plan 221,012 1 1,110 1,151
Exercise of stock options and
WAITANLS ..ttt ieiaeannnnns 5,382,161 5 10,077 10,082
Repurchases of common stock ....... (1,873,002) (6,003)  (6,003)
Dividend of subsidiary, PracticeWorks,
adjustment ............... ... 401 401
Allowance for loan losses (reversed) .. (6,000) (6,000)
Loan payments, net ................ 10,632 10,632
Netincome ........oviinnnna. . . 24,150 24,150
Balance at December 31, 2602 ..... .. 44,605,944 (1,985,502)  $45 $203,173 $ —  $(136,313) $(6,472) $ 60,433

See accompanying notes.
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VITALWORKS INC,

CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Operating activities
Income (loss) from continuing OPErations ..............uuuiurireiiineeennnnn..
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to cash provided
by operating activities:
Loss on headquarters building held forsale........... ... ... ... ... ... ..
Restructuring and other nonrecurring costs and impairment charges (credits) .. ...
Depreciation and amortization, primarily goodwill in 2001 and 2000 .............
Provisions for bad debts, returns and discounts . ....... ... il a
Tax benefit from the exercise of options ............ ..o
Gain on release of pension Hability . ............ ..
Amortization of deferred finance costs, charged to interest expense ..............
Amortization of product development Costs ...... ... .. v
Deferred INCOME 1aXES . ..o\ttt e it
0 1137 I
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... ... e
Computer hardware held for resale, prepaid expenses and other...............
Accounts payable, accrued costs and expenses ........ ... .o i
Income taxes payable ...... ... . i
Deferred tevenUe . . ...t
Unearned discounts re: outsourced printing SEIvices ................o.oo..o..
Interest payments (income) on notes receivable from former directors .............

Cash provided by operating activities . ... .. ... . o i i

Investing activities
Product development coStS. ... ...t
Proceeds from sale of office buildings............ .. ..o
Proceeds from sale of equIPmMEnt. .. ... ..ot e
Purchases of property and equipment . ........ ... ... .. i
Cash received from (advanced to) PracticeWorks, Inc. ................. ... ...
O heT L
Cash provided by (used in) imvesting activities ........................

Financing activities

Long-term debt:
(Payments) . ... .. e
PrOCEeds . . o
Exercise of stock options and warrants . ..... ...
Loan payments from (loans to) former directors ............ ... oo
Repurchases of common stock. . ... ...
Proceeds from convertible, redeemable preferred stock issuable .. ............ ...
Cash paid for price protection of shares issued re: a 1998 business acquisition. . ...
Deferred finance costs and other............ i i

Cash provided by (used in) Gnancing activities ................ .. ... ...

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalemts ............. ... v,
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..... ... . ... ... ... ... ... ...

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .......... ... ... .. ...

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31,

2002

2001

2600

$ 24,150 $(22,436) $(48,673)

1,375
(6501) 6,903 5,447
2,572 26207 27,966
2,815 3,196 1,883
1,413
(550)
277 638 217
911
(11,886)
255
(4,252)  (2,031) 13,580
(892) 218 1,074
1,536 (1,982) 9,208
3,256
1,344 (971) 1,961
(1,292) 6,503 8,215
610 (610)
20,758 18,230 12,756
(4,345)  (4,601)
7,310 800
220 146
(771)  (1203)  (4,770)
333 (344)  (24,658)
(17 738
2,527 (5,145) (28,544)
(38,597)  (9,154)  (6,442)
27,450 194 8,038
10,017 1,804 1,590
10,991 1,215 (5,238)
(6,003)
10,000
(500)
(657)  (125)
3201 (6066) 7448
26,486 7019  (8,340)
12,988 5969 14,309

$ 39474 § 12,988 3 5969




VITALWORKS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Business

VitalWorks Inc. (“VitalWorks” or the “Company”) is a leading provider of information management
technology and services targeted to healthcare practices and organizations throughout the United States. The
Company provides IT-based solutions for general medical practices and has specialty-specific products and
services for practices such as radiology, anesthesiology, ophthalmology, emergency medicine, plastic surgery,
and dermatology. VitalWorks also offers enterprise-level systems designed for large physician groups and
networks. The Company’s range of software solutions, which include workflow features related to patient
encounters, automate the administrative, financial, and clinical information management functions for
physicians and other healthcare providers. VitalWorks provides its clients with ongoing software support,
implementation, training, electronic data interchange (“EDI”) services for patient billing and claims
processing, and a variety of Web-based services.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Conselidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, and its subsidiaries, all of
which were wholly-owned and merged into VitalWorks Inc. during 2001. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Reclassification of Financial Statement Balances

Certain amounts in the accompanying financial statements for 2001 and 2000 have been reclassified to
conform to the 2002 presentation.

Revenue Recognition

Software license revenues and system (computer hardware) sales are recognized upon execution of the
sales contract and delivery of the software (off-the-shelf application software) and/or hardware. In all cases,
however, the fee must be fixed or determinable, collection of any related receivable must be considered
probable, and no significant post-contract obligations of the Company shall be remaining. Otherwise, the sale
is deferred until all of the requirements for revenue recognition have been satisfied. Maintenance fees for
routine client support and unspecified product updates are recognized ratably over the term of the
maintenance arrangement. Training, implementation and EDI services revenues are recognized as the services
are performed. Most of the Company’s sales and licensing contracts involve multiple elements, in which case,
the Company allocates the total value of the customer arrangement to each element based on the relative fair
values of the respective elements. The residual method is used to determine revenue recognition with respect
to a multiple element arrangement when specific objective evidence of fair value exists for all of the
undelivered elements (e.g., implementation, training and maintenance services), but does not exist for one or
more of the delivered elements of the contract (e.g., computer software or hardware). The fair value of an
element is determined by the average price charged when that element is sold separately (e.g., the fair value of
maintenance services is determined based on the average renewal price charged to clients for continued
maintenance). If evidence of fair value cannot be established for the undelivered element(s) of an
arrangement, the total value of the customer arrangement is deferred until the undelivered element(s) is
delivered or until objective evidence of fair value is established. In the Company’s contracts and arrangements
with its customers, the Company generally does not include acceptance provisions, which would give the
customer the right to accept or reject the product after the Company ships it. However, if an acceptance
provision is included, revenue is recognized upon the customer’s acceptance of the product, which occurs upon
the earlier of receipt of a written customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance period. Allowances for
estimated future returns and discounts (recorded as contra-revenue), as well as bad debts, are provided upon
recognition of revenues.

49




VITALWORKS INC.
NOTES TO CONSCOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Recognition of revenues in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make judgments that affect the timing and amount of reported revenues.

Current Assets, and Liabilities

The Company considers highly liquid investment instruments with varying terms of three months or less
to be cash equivalents and those with varying terms greater than three months but no more than a year would
be considered short-term investments. Cash equivalents are comprised primarily of investment-grade com-
mercial paper, time deposits, and U.S. federal, state and political subdivision obligations.

The Company’s accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms carried at
their face value, less allowances for estimated future returns and discounts, as well as bad debts. The Company
evaluates the carrying amount of its accounts receivable on an ongoing basis and establishes a valuation
allowance based on a number of factors, including specific customer circumstances, historical rate of write-offs
and the past due status of the accounts. At the end of each fiscal quarter, the allowance is reviewed and
analyzed for adequacy and is often adjusted based on the findings. The allowance is increased through a
reduction of revenues, an increase in bad debt expense and/or recovery of amounts previously written-off. The
allowance is reduced by write-offs of amounts deemed uncollectible and adjustments to revenue and/or bad
debt expense, if any, based on management’s determination as to the adequacy of the recorded allowance.

All current assets and current liabilities, because of their short-term nature, are stated at cost or face
value, which approximates market value. The carrying amount of the Company’s long-term debt, which
provides for interest at floating rates, approximates market value (see Note G).

Computer Hardware Held for Resale

Computer hardware held for resale includes computer equipment and related peripherals, which are
valued at the lower of cost or realizable value. Cost is principally determined by either the first-in first-out or
average cost methods.

Goodwill Assets and Business Combinations

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired and
accounted for as purchase transactions. In 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
Statement 142 provides that, upon adoption, the Company shall no longer amortize its goodwill assets. Rather,
the Company is required to test its goodwill for impairment of value on at least an annual basis. Pursuant to
Statement 142, the Company discontinued amortizing goodwill on January 1, 2002. The adoption of
Statement 142 has not had a negative impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Excluding goodwill amortization of $23.1 million and $23.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, the net loss would have been $(4.7) million, or $(0.13) per share, and $(54.9) million, or
$(1.64) per share, respectively, compared to net income of $24.2 million, or $.49 per diluted share, for 2002.

Also in 2001, the FASB issued Statement 141, “Business Combinations.” Statement 141 requires the use
of the purchase method of accounting and prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interests method of accounting
for business combinations. Statement 141 also requires that the Company recognize acquired intangible assets
apart from goodwill if the acquired intangible assets meet certain criteria. Statement 141 applies to all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

The Company’s business combinations were completed prior to 2000 and were accounted for using both
the pooling-of-interests and purchase methods. The pooling-of-interests method does not result in the
recognition of acquired goodwill or other intangible assets. As a result, the adoption of Statements 141 and 142
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did not affect the results of past transactions accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method. However,
all future business combinations would be accounted for under the purchase method, which may result in the
Tecognition of goodwill and other intangible assets, some of which would be recognized through operations,
either by amortization or impairment charges, in the future.

Product Development and Deferred Finance Costs

The Company begins capitalizing product development costs, exclusively third-party programmer fees,
only after establishing commercial and technical viability. Annual amortization of these costs represents the
greater of the amount computed using (i) the ratio that current gross revenues for the product(s) bear to the
total current and anticipated future gross revenues of the product(s), or (ii) the straight-line method over the
remaining estimated economic life of the product(s); generally, depending on the nature and success of the
product, such deferred costs are amortized over a three to five-year period. Amortization commences when the
product is made commercially available. Two of the five products under development were made commer-
cially available in 2002.

Deferred finance costs ($.6 million and $.1 million, net of accumulated amortization, as of December 31,
2002 and 2001), which include charges, fees and expenses directly associated with loan origination and
underwriting, are recognized as interest expense over the expected life of the respective loan at an amortization
rate per annum that approximates the interest method.

Depreciation/Amertization

Depreciation and amortization are computed principally using the straight-line method over the
estimated economic or useful lives of the applicable assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lesser of the remaining life of the lease or the useful life of the improvements.

Stock-based Compensation

Statement 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by Statement 148, “Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123,” provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, Statement 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results.

The Company accounts for stock option grants and stock awards, based on their intrinsic value, in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
and related interpretations. Under the intrinsic value method, compensation expense is only recognized if the
exercise price of the employee stock option is less than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. The weighted-average estimated grant date fair value, as defined by Statement 123, of options granted
in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $2.34, $1.61 and $2.97, respectively, as calculated using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. The Company prices its stock options at fair market value on the date of grant, and therefore,
under Opinion 25, no compensation expense is recognized for stock options granted. The following table
illustrates the effect on income (loss) from continuing operations and the related earnings per share if the




VITALWORKS INC.
NQOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Statement 123, as amended, to stock-based

employee compensation (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Income (loss) from continuing operations, as reported ............... $24,15¢  $(22,436) $(48,673)
Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

Bl S . o e (5,328)  (10,374) (6,415)
Pro forma income (loss) from continuing operations ................. $18,830  $(32,810) $(55,088)
Earnings (loss) per share — continuing operations:

Basic — as Teported .. ...t $ 858 $ (060) $ (1.45)

Basic — pro forma . ...ttt $ 045 $ (0.88) § (1.64)

Diluted —asreported. . ... e $ 649 §$ (0.60) $ (1.45)

Diluted —pro forma. ... ... ... $ 639 § (088) $ (1.64)

The fair value of the Company’s employee stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended Becember 31,
2002 2001 2000

Risk-free Interest Tate . . ..ot e e e 26% 4.0% 5.2%
Expected dividend yield . ... ... . e 8.0 0.0 0.0
Expected stock price volatility . . ... . ... i e 78.7 75.4 76.7
Weighted average expected life (inyears) ........... ... ... ... i 4 4 4

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was not developed for use in valuing employee stock options.
Instead, this model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable, which differ significantly from the Company’s stock option awards. In
addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected
stock price volatility.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for taxes based on current taxable income, and the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax carrying values of its assets and
liabilities (deferred income taxes).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) (in
thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Numerator — income (loss):
Continuing OPErationS . . . ..\ v ettt it et e $24,150  $(22,436) $(48,673)
Discontinued Operations . ......... ..ot (5,384)  (29,440)
$24,150  $(27,820) §$(78,113)
Denominator:
Basic EPS — weighted-average shares ........................... 41,592 37,477 33,537
Effect of dilutive securities, stock option and warrant rights ......... 7,258
Diluted EPS — adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed
COTIVETSIOMS . .« v vt ettt e et et et e e e 48,850 37,477 33,537
Basic EPS:
Continuing Operations . . . ..o v vttt e e $ 058 § (060) § (145
Discontinued 0perations . .............oiuiiitiii i (0.14) (0.88)

$ 058 $ (074) $ (2.33)

Diluted EPS:
Continuing operations..............coeiiiiieea.. e $ 049 $ (060) $ (145
Discontinued operations . ........... .. .. B (0.14) {0.88)

S 049 $ (074) $§ (2.33)

Because their effect would be antidilutive, stock option and warrant rights for up to 1.1 million common
shares with exercise prices ranging from $6.14 to $17.31 per share were excluded from the diluted EPS
calculation for 2002. For the same reason, all options and warrants were excluded from the diluted calculation
for years 2001 and 2000.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is a measure of all changes in equity of an enterprise that results from recognized
transactions and other economic events of a period other than transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners. For the Company, comprehensive income (loss) is equivalent to its consolidated net income (loss).

~ Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company does not hold derivative instruments such as foreign currency and interest rate swaps,
options, forwards, futures, collars, and warrants and has not entered into contracts embedded with derivative
instruments either to hedge existing risks or for speculative purposes.

C. Distribution of PracticeWorks Common Steck

On March 5, 2001 (the “Distribution Date™), VitalWorks completed the distribution of the common
stock of its PracticeWorks, Inc. subsidiary (“PracticeWorks” or “Division™), a provider of practice manage-
ment software for dental and oral surgery practices, to the Company’s stockholders in a tax-free distribution.
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The spin-off of PracticeWorks was effected by way of a pro rata dividend (the “Distribution” or “Spin-Off”)

of all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of PracticeWorks to VitalWorks’ stockholders of

record as of February 21, 2001 (the “Record Date”). This resulted in PracticeWorks becoming an

independent, publicly-traded company. Immediately prior to the Distribution, VitalWorks effectively trans-
ferred to PracticeWorks the Division’s assets and liabilities and, thereby, distributed $28.5 million of net

assets, as adjusted, in connection with the Spin-Off. VitalWorks’ stockholders received one share of
PracticeWorks common stock for every four shares of VitalWorks common stock owned as of the Record

Date. No proceeds were received by VitalWorks in connection with the Distribution.

Accordingly, the accompanying 2001 and 2000 consolidated statements of operations reflect the results of
operations of PracticeWorks as discontinued operations. For years 2001 and 2000, revenues included in the
loss from discontinued operations were $6.6 million (i.e., through the Distribution Date) and $40.0 million,
respectively.

For purposes of governing certain of the ongoing relationships between PracticeWorks and the Company,
and to provide for an orderly transition to the status of two independent companies, PracticeWorks and the
Company entered into various agreements. Among other things, these agreements define the ongoing
relationship between the parties after the Distribution. Because these agreements were negotiated while
‘PracticeWorks was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, they are not the result of negotiations between
independent parties, although the Company and PracticeWorks set pricing terms for interim services believed
to be comparable to what would have been achieved through arm’s-length negotiations. Following the
Distribution, additional or modified agreements, arrangements and transactions were entered into between the
Company and PracticeWorks and such agreements and transactions were determined through arm’s-length
negotiations. In connection with the Distribution, both companies have indemnified the other, and either may
incur obligations with respect to certain representations, warranties, commitments, and/or contingencies of the
other entered into on or prior to the Distribution Date. A brief description of certain of the material
agreements follows:

Distribution Agreement

Prior to the Distribution Date, the Company and PracticeWorks entered into the Distribution Agree-
ment, which provided for, among other things, the principal corporate transactions required to effect the
Distribution and other agreements relating to the continuing relationship between PracticeWorks and the
Company after the Distribution. Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, the Company transferred to
PracticeWorks all of the assets and liabilities relating to the Company’s information management technology
business for dentists, orthodontists and oral and maxillofacial surgeons.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement and effective as of the Distribution Date, PracticeWorks
assumed, and agreed to indemnify the Company against, all liabilities, litigation and claims, including related
insurance cosis, arising out of PracticeWorks’ business. The Company retained, and agreed to indemnify
PracticeWorks against, all liabilities, litigation and claims, including related insurance costs, arising out of the
Company’s business. The foregoing obligations do not entitle an indemnified party to recovery to the extent
any such liability is covered by proceeds received by such party from any third party insurance policies.

The Distribution Agreement provides that each of the Company and PracticeWorks will be granted
access to certain records and information in the possession of the other, and will require the retention by each
of the Company and PracticeWorks for a period of eight years following the Distribution Date of all of this
information in its possession. Also, the Distribution Agreement provides for a three-year period during which
neither the Company nor PracticeWorks may solicit pre-existing customers or employees of the other party.
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Transition Services Agreement

The Company and PracticeWorks entered into the Transition Services Agreement on the Distribution
Date. Pursuant to this agreement, in exchange for specified fees, the Company provided to PracticeWorks
services including insurance-related services and employee benefit services, and PracticeWorks provided to the
Company services including the preparation of tax returns, maintenance of the general ledger, preparation of
financial statements, corporate record-keeping, and payroll for a fee of $.4 million in 2001. The fees paid
pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement were agreed upon between the parties. This agreement
terminated on December 31, 2001. Management believes that the terms and conditions were as favorable to
the Company as those available from unrelated parties for a comparable arrangement.

Tax Disaffiliation Agreement

The Company and PracticeWorks entered into the Tax Disaffiliation Agreement on the Distribution Date
which identifies each party’s rights and obligations with respect to deficiencies and refunds, if any, of federal,
state, local or foreign taxes for periods before and after the Distribution and related matters such as the filing
of tax returns and the handling of Internal Revenue Service matters and other audits. Under the Tax
Disaffiliation Agreement, PracticeWorks will indemnify the Company for any tax liability attributable to
PracticeWorks or its affiliates for any period. PracticeWorks will also indemnify the Company for all taxes and
liabilities incurred solely because (i) PracticeWorks breaches a representation or covenant given to the law
firm King & Spalding in connection with rendering its tax opinion in the Distribution, which breach
contributes to an Internal Revenue Service determination that the Distribution was not tax-free, or (ii) a post-
Distribution action or omission by PracticeWorks or any affiliate of PracticeWorks contributes to an Internal
Revenue Service determination that the Distribution was not tax-free. The Company will indemnify
PracticeWorks for all taxes and liabilities incurred solely because (i) the Company breaches a representation
or covenant given to King & Spalding in connection with rendering its tax opinion in the Distribution, which
breach contributes to an Internal Revenue Service determination that the Distribution was not tax-free, or
(ii) a post-Distribution action or omission by the Company or any affiliate contributes to an Internal Revenue
Service determination that the Distribution was not tax-free. If the Internal Revenue Service determines that
the Distribution was not tax-free for any other reason, the Company and PracticeWorks will indemnify each
other against 50% of all taxes and liabilities.

PracticeWorks will also indemnify the Company for any taxes resulting from any internal realignment
undertaken to facilitate the Distribution on or before the Distribution Date.

Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement

VitalWorks and PracticeWorks entered into the Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation
Agreement on the Distribution Date, which contains provisions relating to employee compensation, benefits
and labor matters and the treatment of options to purchase VitalWorks common stock held by VitalWorks
employees who became PracticeWorks employees. This agreement provides that VitalWorks options held by
VitalWorks employees who became PracticeWorks employees immediately following the Distribution may be
replaced by PracticeWorks options. PracticeWorks employees whose VitalWorks options were fully vested as
of the Distribution Date had the right to surrender their vested VitalWorks options for optiens to purchase
PracticeWorks common stock for a period of 30 days following the Distribution Date, or April 4, 2001. Any
VitalWorks employees who became PracticeWorks employees who chose not to surrender their vested
VitalWorks options during this time period continued to hold VitalWorks options which expired generally
within 30 to 90 days from the Distribution Date. PracticeWorks employees who were not fully vested in
VitalWorks options as of the Distribution Date had their VitalWorks options exchanged for PracticeWorks
options as of the Distribution Date.
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D. Nonrecurring Charges (Credits)
Restructuring Costs (Credits)

The 2000 Plan. On August 1, 2000, VitalWorks announced its intention to restructure its operations
through a plan of employee reductions and consolidation of office facilities. Since then, the Company closed
14 facilities and terminated approximately 400 employees. The offices that were closed are subject to operating
leases that expire at various dates through 2005.

The 1999 Pian. In the fourth quarter of 1999, VitalWorks decided to change its product strategy to
begin development of ASP applications and Internet solutions, and begin a transition to subscription based-
pricing and completed three acquisitions. Concurrently, management committed to a plan of restructuring and
reorganization related to acquisitions completed in 1999, which was completed in the second quarter of 2000,
to consolidate certain facilities and eliminate staffing redundancies involving approximately 50 employees.

A description of the nature and amount of restructuring costs {credits) and other charges incurred with
respect to the 2000 and 1999 Plans is as follows (in thousands).

Costs
Balance at Applied Balance at
December 31, Additions Against December 31,
» 1999 to Accrual Accrual 2000
Facility closure and consolidation ........... $1,339 $4,785 $(1,521) $4,603
Employee severance and other termination v
benefits .......... ... ... . 515 4,145 (2,429) 2,231
Other asset write-downs and costs........... 235 408 (643) —
2000 and 1999 Plans Total................. $2,089 $9,338  $(4,593) $6,834
Costs Costs
Applied Balance at Applied Balance at
Adjustments Against  December 31, Adjustments Against  December 31,
to Accrual Accrual 2001 to Accrual Accrual 2002

Facility closure and

consolidation ......... $(205) $(1,612)  $2,786 $(501) $(1,178)  $1,107
Employee severance

and other termination

benefits.............. (220) (1,897) 114 (114) —
2000 and 1999 Plans
Total................ $(425)(a) $(3,509)  $2,900 $(501)(b) $(1,292) $1,107(c)

(a) credits resulting from changes in accounting estimates relating to facility closure and employee severance
costs incurred in 2000 in connection with the 2000 Plan

(b) savings in connection with the early termination of an office lease for a facility closed in March 2001 as
part of the 2000 Plan

{c) primarily amounts accrued for outstanding lease commitments relating to the 2000 Plan
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In June 2002, the FASR issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Statement 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an
exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by Statement 146 include lease termination costs and certain
employee severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, facility closing, or
other exit or disposal activity. Statement 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002.

Impairment Charges (Credits) and Other Nonrecurring Costs

In the June and September 2002 quarters, VitaiWorks received final payments from three former
directors satisfying their outstanding loans from the Company, including interest. Consequently, the Company
recorded a credit of $6.0 million, reflecting a complete reversal of the allowance for loan losses established in
March 2001, and related interest income of $1.1 million.

In 2001, the Company recognized impairment charges and incurred other nonrecurring costs of
$8.3 million. These costs and expenses included the $6.0 million provision for loan losses relating to the notes
receivable from former directors, $.9 million for unused equity financing (paid in 2002), $.8 million of
executive severance for separation benefits paid to the Company’s former chairman pursuant to the terms of a
mutual separation agreement and a pre-existing employment agreement, and retention bonuses of $.2 million
for terminated employees.

In 2000, concurrent with the 2000 Plan, the Company recognized impairment charges and incurred other
nonrecurring costs of $6.6 million consisting of (i) $3.5 million relating to fixed assets that were abandoned
due to the closing of facilities; (ii) $1.1 million to write-down computer hardware held for resale to its
estimated net realizable value based on a planned bulk lot disposal as a result of the Company’s decision to
discontinue selling hardware and hardware support in certain of its business lines; (iii) $1.3 million for
compensation and other termination benefits; (iv) $.4 million for other asset write-downs; and (v) $.3 million
for professional services and other related costs.

In 2001, the FASB issued Statement 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” The adoption of Statement 144 has not had a negative impact on the Company’s financial statements.

E. Property and Equipment, and Buildings Held for Sale

Major classes of property and equipment consist of the following:

Depreciation/

Amortization December 31,

Period 2002 2001
(Years) (In thousands)
Equipment, primarily computers, and software .............. 3-5 $10,338  §9,439
Equipment under capital lease obligations . ................. 3-5 2,718 2,718
Furniture and other......... ... .. i 3-7 512 572
13,568 12,729
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ 9,026 6,294

$ 4542 $6,435

Depreciation and amortization expense of these assets totaled $2.6 million, $2.9 million and $3.7 million
for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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In August 2002, the Company completed the sale of a former headquarters building in Atlanta for
proceeds of $6.3 million, after closing costs. A portion of the proceeds from the sale was used to repay the
$5.5 million mortgage loan on the building (see Note G). Approximately $.4 million of the proceeds is being
held in escrow to partially guarantee to the new owner the monetary performance of PracticeWorks, Inc., a
tenant of the building, through December 2003 under their lease agreement. The Company spun-off
PracticeWorks in March 2001 (see Note C). In connection with the sale, the Company entered into a market
rate lease with the new owner of the building ending December 2003 for approximately 3,900 square feet of
office space, or less than 5% of the building. In 2002, the Company recognized a gain of $.1 million from the
sale of the building (included in selling, general and administrative expenses). The amount held in escrow has
been deferred and may be recognized in 2003.

In January 2002, the Company completed the sale of its other office building in Atlanta for $1.4 million,
after closing costs.
F. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Cost of providing EDI services. . ... ..., $ 289 § 2208
Trade accounts payable .. ... . 1,936 872
Legal, including settlement costs, and other professional services fees ... ... 1,428 2,253
Other accrued EXPENSES . « . ot vttt et e e e 4,378 5,170

$10,630  $10,503

G. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:
December 31,

2002 2801
(In thousands)
Term loan with Foothill Capital Corporation ..............c.coovve. .. $18,25¢
Finova Capital Corporation:
Term J0am . o .o $21,882
Real estate mortgage loans . .......... ... 6,850
Capital leases (see Note H) . ... ...t e i 691 1,713
Other . . o e 108
18,941 30,553
Less CUTTENt POItION . . o\ vttt ettt et et ettt et e et ee s 4,300 14,063

$14,641  $16,490

All loan amounts with Finova were repaid in March 2002 in connection with a new four-year credit
agreement entered into by the Company with Foothill Capital Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Wells Fargo & Company. The new agreement included a term loan of $22.0 million at an interest rate of
prime plus 2% (6.25% at December 31, 2002), and a mortgage loan of $5.5 million. The Company repaid the
mortgage loan in August 2002 in connection with the sale of the Atlanta property (see Note E). Subject to the
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Company achieving certain specificd carnings targets, the margin by which the Company’s interest rate on the
term loan exceeds prime may be reduced by as much as 1.1% over the life of the loan. Interest is payable
monthly in arrears. Principal is payable over the life of the agreement, including a balloon payment in March
2006. Should the Company decide to prepay the term loan in full prior to year four, it would incur a
prepayment fee equal to 2% in year two and 1% in year three of the then outstanding principal balance of the
term loan. The prepayment fee may be reduced should the loan be prepaid in connection with a change of
control of the Company. The loans, which are collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets and
intellectual property rights, subject the Company to certain restrictive covenants, including (i) the required
maintenance of minimum levels of recurring revenues and earnings, as defined, (ii) an annual limit on the
amount of capital expenditures, and (iii) the prohibition of dividend payments to shareholders.

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows: $4.3 million in 2003, $2.6 million in 2004, and $12.0 million
in 2006.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 145, “Rescission’ of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 62,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical Corrections.” For most companies, Statement 145
will require gains and losses on extinguishments of debt to be classified as income or loss from continuing
operations rather than as extraordinary items as previously required under Statement 4. Extraordinary
treatment will be required for certain extinguishments as provided in Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30. Statement 145 also amends Statement 13 for certain sales-leaseback and sublease accounting. The
Company is required to adopt the provisions of Statement 145 in January 2003. The Company believes the
adoption of Statement 145 will not have a significant impact on its financial statements.

H. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases office and rescarch facilities, and certain computer and other equipment under
various operating and capital lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2008.

Future minimum lease payments under all operating and capital leases with noncancellable terms in
excess of one year are as follows:

Year Capital Operating
(In thousands)
20003 L $571 $2,557
2004 . 132 1,881
2005 L 14 1,352
2006 . o 1,341
2007 o e 766
Thereafter . ... o - _ 337
717 8,234
Less amounts included in accrued restructuring costs ..................... - 959
717 $7,275

Less amounts representing interest. .. ...,

Present value of net minimum lease payments
Less CUrrent POTtON . ..o v ottt e e

Long-term obligations under capital leases ........... ... . ... ... ..
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In addition, certain of the office leases provide for contingent payments based on building operating
expenses, Rental expenses for years 2002, 2001 and 2000 under all lease agreements totaled $2.6 mitlion,
$2.5 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

In May 2002, the Company entered into a five-year agreement with a third-party provider of EDI services
for patient claims processing. For the first year of the agreement, the Company is committed to pay $.5 million
for processing services. Thereafter, the annual services fee will range from $.5 million to $.8 million based on
the Company’s volume usage in the last month of the preceding year.

In connection with the Company-sponsored employee savings plan (discussed in Note I), the Company
has committed, for the 2003 plan year, to contribute to the plan. The Company’s matching contribution,
estimated to be approximately $.8 million, will be made half in cash and half in VitalWorks common stock.

In October 2001, the Company expanded its August 2000 agreement with National Data Corporation
(“NDC”) for outsourcing much of the Company’s patient statement and invoice printing work. The Company
will continue, for a fee, to provide printing services for its physicians under the subcontracting arrangement
with NDC. The amended arrangement, which extends for a period of up to seven and a half years, provides
for, among other things, the attainment of certain quarterly transaction processing volume levels during the
term. In exchange, the Company received $7.9 million in cash (in connection with the August agreement, the
Company received $8.8 million in 2000), which represent unearned discounts that are recognized as an offset
to cost of maintenance and services revenues as the minimum volume commitments are fulfilled.

From time to time, in the normal course of business, various claims are made against the Company.
Except for proceedings described below, there are no material proceedings to which the Company is a party,
and management is unaware of any material contemplated actions against the Company.

On February 27, 2003, a purported class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for
the District of Connecticut against VitalWorks Inc. and three of its executive officers. The action was brought
by plaintiff Bernard Frazier, on behalf of purchasers of securities of the Company between April 24, 2002 and
October 23, 2002 (the “Class Period”). The complaint alleges, among other things, violations of Sec-
tion 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and breach of
fiduciary duties. The complaint alleges that the defendants made misleading statements and omissions
regarding the Company’s business and operations, principally in press releases and public conference calls in
April 2002 and July 2002, which allegedly had the effect of artificially inflating the market price of the
Company’s common stock during the Class Period, and that six officers of the Company, including the
defendant officers, sold shares of Company common stock during the Class Period. The plaintiff secks
recovery of an unstated amount of compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company
understands that an additional lawsuit or lawsuits containing substantially similar causes of action as the above
referenced matter has been filed against VitalWorks, although the Company has not yet been served with any
complaint.

Cn April 19, 2001, a lawsuit styled David and Susan Jones v. InfoCure Corporation (now known as
VitalWorks Inc.), et al., was filed in Boone County Superior Court in Indiana. The defendants removed the
case to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. The complaint alleges state
securities law violations, breach of contract, and fraud claims against the defendants. The complaint does not
specify the amount of damages sought by plaintiffs, but seeks rescission of a transaction that the plaintiffs
value at $5 million, as well as punitive damages and reimbursement for the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and
associated cosis and expenses of the lawsuit. In a decision from the Court dated October 15, 2001, the
plaintiffs’ request for a preliminary injunction to preserve their remedy of rescission was denied, part of their
complaint was dismissed and the case was transferred to the Northern District Court of Georgia. On
October 26, 2001, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal with the 7th Circuit Court of Appeals. On November 8,
2002, the 7th Circuit Court affirmed the denial of the preliminary injunction and dismissed the remainder of

60




VITALWORKS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

the appeal. The case is now pending in the Northern District Court of Georgia and the plaintiffs have obtained
leave of the Court to file an amended complaint.

While management believes that the Company has meritorious defenses in each of the foregoing matters
and the Company intends to pursue its positions vigorously, litigation is inherently subject to many
uncertainties. Thus, the outcome of these matters is uncertain and could be adverse to the Company.
However, even if the outcome of these cases is adverse, management does not believe that the outcome of
these cases, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the
Company. However, depending on the amount and timing of an unfavorable resolution(s) of the contingen-
cies, it is possible that the Company’s future results of operations or cash flows could be materially affected in
a particular reporting period(s).

The Company was named as a defendant as successor to CDL Healthcare Systems, Inc. (“CDL”), a
company acquired by VitalWorks in December 1999, in a complaint filed in the Circuit Court of the Eleventh
Judicial Circuit in Dade County, Florida on February 27, 2001 by Sonia Abutog, individually, Angelo Abutog,
individually, and Sonia and Angelo Abutog, as parents and next best friends to Aaron Abutog, a minor. Gary
Weiner, former President of CDL, and his daughter, Elisha Weiner, were also named as defendants. Plaintiffs
alleged that they were injured at a time, prior to the merger between the Company and CDL, when a motor
vehicle operated by Elisha Weiner collided with plaintiff Sonia Abutog, a pedestrian. The plaintiff contended
that she and her unborn child suffered severe personal injuries as a result of the accident and sought to recover
damages in an unspecified amount in excess of $15,000, plus interest and costs. The Company’s motion for
final summary judgment dismissing the action against the Company was granted by order of the Court dated
July 9, 2002. The plaintiffs did not file a Notice of Appeal of this decision and the time to do so has expired.

I. Stockholders’ Equity
Stockholder Rights Plan

In December 2002, the Company adopted a stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) and declared a
dividend of one right (the “Right”) on each share of VitalWorks common stock. The dividend was paid on
December 27, 2002, to stockholders of record on December 27, 2002. The Rights Plan was approved and
rececmmended to the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) by a special committee of the Board
consisting of three outside members of the Board. The Rights Plan is designed to enable all VitalWorks
stockholders to realize the full value of their investment and to provide for fair and equal treatment of all
VitalWorks stockholders if there is an unsolicited attempt to acquire control of the Company. The adoption of
the Rights Plan is intended as a means to guard against abusive takeover tactics and is not in response to any
specific effort to acquire control of the Company.

Initially, the Rights will trade with the common stock of VitalWorks and will not be exercisable. The
Rights will separate from the common stock and become exercisable upon the occurrence of events typical of
stockholder rights plans. In general, such separation will occur when any person or group, without the Board’s
approval, acquires or makes an offer to acquire 15% or more of VitalWorks’ common stock. Thereafter,
separate right certificates will be distributed and each Right will entitle its holder to purchase one one-
thousandth of a share of VitalWorks’ Series B Junior Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock™) for an exercise
price of $20.00 (the “Exercise Price”). Each one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock has economic
and voting terms equivalent to those of one share of VitalWorks’ common stock.

Subject to the specific terms of the Rights Plan, in the event that any person or group, without the
Board’s approval, actually acquires 15% or more of VitalWorks’ common stock, then each holder of a Right
(other than such person or group) shall thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of such Right and
payment of the Exercise Price, shares of Preferred Stock having a value equal to twice the Exercise Price.
Also, if the Company is involved in a merger or sells more than 50% of its assets or earning power, each Right,
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unless previously redeemed by the Board, will entitle its holder (other than the acquiring person or group) to
purchase shares of common stock of the acquiring company having a market value of twice the Exercise Price.

The Rights Plan is not intended to prevent a takeover of the Company at a full and fair price. However,
the Rights Plan may cause substantial dilution to a person or group that, without prior Board approval,
acquires 15% or more of VitalWorks’ common stock, or unless the Rights are first redeemed by the Board. The
Rights may be redeemed by the Board for $0.005 per Right and will otherwise expire on December 5, 2012,

The Rights Plan contains an independent directors review provision whereby a committee of independent
members of the Board will review the Rights Plan at least every three years and, if a majority of the members
of the independent committee deems it appropriate, may recommend to the Board the continued mainte-
nance, modification or termination of the Rights Plan.

The Rights Plan does not weaken the Company’s financial strength or interfere with its business plans.
The issuance of the Rights has no dilutive effect, will not affect reported earnings per share, is not taxable to
the Company or its stockholders and will not change the way VitalWorks’ shares are traded.

Stock Repurchase Program

In October 2002, the Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $15 million of the
Company’s common stock from time to time. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased are
determined by the Company’s management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors.
The repurchase program may be suspended or discontinued at any time. Repurchased shares are available for
use in connection with stock plans and for other corporate purposes. The repurchase program is funded using
the Company’s existing cash resources. As of December 31, 2002, the Company repurchased 1,873,002 shares
of its common stock under the program.

Employee Savings Plan

The Company maintains an employee savings plan that qualifies as a cash or deferred salary arrangement
under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Through 2002, participating employees could defer up to
15% of their pre-tax compensation, but not more than $11,000 per calendar year. The Company may make
matching and/or profit-sharing contributions to the plan at its sole discretion. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, the
Company authorized matching contributions of $1.1 million, $1.1 million and $1.3 million, respectively, to the
plan, representing up to 6% of pre-tax compensation. Except for a cash contribution of $.3 million made in
2003 with respect to the 2002 plan year, the contributions were made in VitalWorks common stock in the
following year.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company amended the plan and has committed, for the 2003 plan year, to
make a quarterly matching contribution equal to two-thirds of each participant’s contribution, not to exceed
4% of the participant’s pre-tax compensation for the quarter. The Company’s matching contribution will be
made half in cash and half in VitalWorks common stock. Employees now become fully vested with respect to
Company contributions after three years of service. The vesting term had been five years. Participating
employees may now defer up to 50% of their pre-tax compensation, but not more than $12,000 per calendar
year.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), as approved by the Company’s
shareholders in June 2002, permits eligible employees to purchase VitalWorks common stock at a discounted
price through periodic payroll deductions of up to 15% of their cash compensation. Generally, each offering
period will have a maximum duration of six months and shares of common stock will be purchased for each
participant at the conclusion of each offering period. The price at which the common stock is purchased under
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the ESPP is equal to 85% of the lower of (i) the closing price of the common stock on the first business day of
the offering period, or (ii) the closing price on the last business day of the offering period. Under the ESPP,
.5 million shares of common stock of the Company have been reserved and were available for issuance at
December 31, 2002. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, a total of 56,404, 62,948 and 107,725 shares, respectively, were
issued under the Company’s prior employee stock purchase plan.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has stock option plans that provide for the grant of incentive and nonqualified options to
purchase the Company’s common stock to selected officers, other key employees, directors and consultants.
These plans include the VitalWorks Inc. 2000 Broad Based Stock Plan, the VitalWorks Inc. 1996 Stock
Option Plan, the VitalWorks Inc. Length-of-Service Nonqualified Stock Option Plan and the VitalWorks Inc.
Directors Stock Option Plan. The Company has also assumed the stock options of six medical software
businesses that merged with VitalWorks in 1999. Such options were converted at the applicable rates used to
issue the Company’s common stock in the mergers. The shares reserved under the Company’s stock option
plans were adjusted in connection with the Distribution (see Note C), using a conversion ratio of 2.11667, in
accordance with the terms of the respective plans.

The VitalWorks Inc. 2000 Broad Based Stock Plan (the “2000 Plan’) has 21.2 million shares of common
stock of the Company reserved for nonqualified option grants, stock appreciation right grants, or stock grants
to directors and employees. The option price for each share of stock subject to an option or stock appreciation
right may not be less than the fair market value of a share of stock on the date the option or right is granted.
Options or rights granted under this plan generally vest over a three to four-year period and expire ten years
from the date of grant. At December 31, 2002, there were 12.1 million shares available for grant under the
2000 Plan.

Under the VitalWorks Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan™), 12.7 million shares of common
stock of the Company have been reserved for option grants to directors, officers, other key employees, and
consultants. Employees of the Company may be granted incentive stock options (“ISOs™) within the dollar
limitations prescribed under Section 422(d) of the Internal Revenue Code. The exercise price of ISOs shall
not be less than the fair market value of the common stock as of the option grant date (110% of such value for
10% stockholders). Nonqualified stock options may be granted to directors and consultants. Options generally
vest ratably over a three to four-year period and expire ten years from the date of grant. At December 31,
2002, there were 5.1 million shares available for grant under the 1996 Plan.

Under the VitalWorks Inc. Length-of-Service Nongqualified Stock Option Plan (the “LOSSC Plan™),
2.1 million shares of common stock of the Company have been reserved for issuance to employees of the
Company. Employees are granted nonqualified stock options based on years of service with the Company. The
exercise price of options issued pursuant to this plan shall be no less than the fair market value of the common
stock as of the grant date. Options granted under the LOSSO Plan vest four years and expire ten years from
the date of grant. Effective July 1, 2002, the Company discontinued granting options under the LOSSO Plan.

Under the VitalWorks Inc. Directors Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan”), .4 million shares of
common stock of the Company have been reserved for issuance as nonqualified stock options to non-employee
directors of the Company. Upon appointment to the board of directors, a director receives an option grant of
20,000 shares and an additional option grant of 2,500 shares on each anniversary date. A director may also
receive additional option grants from time to time. One half of the options granted pursuant to this plan vest
after one year of service following the grant date and the other half vests after two years of service following
the grant date. At December 31, 2002, there were .3 million shares available for grant under the Director Plan.
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A summary of stock option activity, and related information for the years ended December 31 is as

follows (shares in thousands):

Weighted
Average

Options Exercise Price
Qutstanding at December 31, 1999 . .. ... .. ... ... 7,989 $10.78
Granted. . ... 11,920 4.95
EXETCISEd .. ottt e (1,627) 4.72
Forfeited or canceled ......... ... ... . i i, (2,388) 9.28
Outstanding at December 31,2000......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 15,894 6.66
Granted. . . ... 761 2.77
EXercised .. ..o e (871) 2.14

Forfeited or canceled ......... ... ... . i i (10,217) 7.31(a)

Conversion in order to preserve intrinsic value .................... 9,271 (a)
Outstanding at December 31,2001 .......... ... ... ... ... ... 14,838 2.49
Granted........... P 324 3.97
EXercised . ... e {5,153) 1.91
Forfeited or canceled ........ ... ... . it {481) 3.95
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002, .. ... ... . i 9,528 $ 2.79
Options exercisable at December 31,2000 .............. ... .. ...... 1,882 $ 8.27
Options exercisable at December 31,2001 ............ ... .......... 6,997 $ 2.24
Options exercisable at December 31,2002 ......................... 5,503 $ 2.61

(a)

In connection with the Spin-Off of PracticeWorks in March 2001, VitalWorks and PracticeWorks
entered into an Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement, which contains provisions
relating to employee compensation, benefits and labor matters including the treatment of options to
purchase VitalWorks common stock as a result of the Distribution (see Note C for further discussion).
PracticeWorks employees exchanged approximately 7.4 million VitalWorks stock options with a weighted
average exercise price of $7.74 for PracticeWorks stock options, thereby canceling the VitalWorks stock
options. Stock options of approximately 8.4 million with a weighted average exercise price of approxi-
mately $7.20 held by VitalWorks employees prior to the Distribution, who did not become PracticeWorks
employees subsequent to the Distribution, were converted to approximately 17.7 million options with an
average price of approximately $3.40 in order to preserve the intrinsic value of the options.

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s outstanding stock options at Decem-

ber 31, 2002 (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding

Weighted Options Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
(Years)
$0.98 - 2.50 7,400 7.6 $2.05 4,389 $2.07
251+ 5.00 1,118 7.2 3.26 691 3.18
5.01- 7.50 634 6.9 6.74 359 6.95
7.51-17.31 376 6.7 9.15 64 9.11
$0.36 - 17.31 9,528 7.5 $2.79 5,503 $2.61
64




VITALWORKS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Warrants

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s outstanding and exercisable warrants
at December 31, 2002 (shares in thousands):

Weighted

Average Weighted

Range of Remaining Average

Exercise Number of Contractual Exercise
Prices Warrants Life Price

(Years)

$0.79 - 6.89 358 5.1 $4.49
6.90-17.84 203 32 7.05
$0.79 -"17.84 561 4.4 $5.42

There was no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements related to warrants in 2002, 2001
and 2000.

J. Income Taxes

The Company’s provision (benefit) for income taxes for 2002 and 2000 is as follows (for 2001, the
Company did not record a provision or benefit for income taxes due to its operating losses and the change in
the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets):

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2000
(In thousands)

Current:
Federal ... ... $ 1,608
State . e e 351
1,959 —
Deferred:
Federal .. ... (1,608) $(12,248)
S At . {189) (1,994)

(1,797) (14,242)
$ 162 $(14,242)

In 2000, the Company did not record a current provision or benefit for income taxes as a result of its
operating losses.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes included in the accompanying statements of operations for 2002
and 2000 is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2000
(In thousands)
Continuing operations .............. it $ 162 $ (9,843)
Discontinued Operations . ....... ...t (4,399)

$§ 162 $(14,242)

The deferred income tax benefit attributable to income from continuing operations for 2000 consists of a
federal benefit of $8.5 million and a state benefit of $1.4 million.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Significant components of deferred

income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Allowarnce for doubtful ACCOUMES . .. .o\ vttt $ 1,422 § 1,390
Goodwill amortization .. ........ . it 8,795 10,041
ACCTUEA B PSS .« v v v e ettt et et et e e e 1,830 1,426
Unearned discounts re: outsourced printing services ................... 4,700 5,095
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards .......................... 38,823 31,303
Notes receivable from former directors . ...... ... .. .. vt 2,517
OheT . . 598 194
55,368 51,966

Less valuation allowance .. ....... ... v 25,271 23,001

$30,097  $28,965

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Product development coStS .. ... ...t . $3347 0§ 1,777
Other . 454
3,347 2,231

Net deferred income tax asset . ... $26,750  $26,734

The provision (benefit) for income taxes attributed to continuing operations differed from the amounts
computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In theusands)

Expected taxes at federal statutoryrate . ..................... $8,509  $(7,628) $(19,895)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .................... 107 (773) (2,692)
Nondeductible goodwill amortization ........................ 3,091 3,223
Retained net operating losses from discontinued operations .. ... (1,034) (7,362)
Other, net. ... .. (178) (162) 388
Change in valuation allowance ............ ... ... ... ... (8,276) 6,506 16,495

Provision (benefit) for income taxes — continuing operations.. $ 162 $§ — § (9,843)

As of December 31, 2002, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of

approximately $93.2 million, which expire at various dates through 2022. Included in the $93.2 million is
approximately $25.8 million, the benefit of which when realized, will be recorded as a credit to additional paid-
in capital, and approximately $19.0 million resulting from preacquisition tax attributes of subsidiaries,
utilization of which is subject to substantial limitations attributable to the change in ownership provisions of

the Internal Revenue Code and similar state authority.

Management has assessed the realizable value of the Company’s deferred tax assets of $55.4 miilion and

determined that a valuation allowance of $25.3 million was necessary as of December 31, 2002 to, along with
deferred tax liabilities of $3.3 million, reduce the net deferred tax asset to $26.8 million, an amount which
management believes is more likely than not to be realized. In reaching this conclusion, management noted
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that internal projections indicate that the Company will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the net
deferred tax assets within three to four years.

K. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow and Noncash Activities

Cash payments for interest amounted to $2.2 million, $2.1 million and $.6 million for 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively. The Company made cash payments for income taxes of $21,000 in 2002. The Company
received net tax refunds of $.1 million and $3.3 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In 2001, the Company distributed $28.5 million of net assets, as adjusted, in connection with the Spin-Off
of PracticeWorks (see Note C).

In 2001 and 2000, the Company acquired certain property and equipment with an aggregate value of
$.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively, in exchange for indebtedness including mortgage and capital lease
obligations. :

In 2001, the Company settled a note payable and price protection feature relating to the 1998 acguisition
of the Healthcare Systems unit of the Reynolds and Reynolds Company by issuing 500,000 shares of
VitalWorks common stock.

In 2002, 2001, and 2000, the Company authorized contributions of $.8 million (plus $.3 million in cash),
$1.1 million and $1.3 million, respectively, to the employee savings plan, which were made in VitalWorks
common stock in the following year.

In 2000, pursuant to a February 2000 agreement with the Company, WebMD Corporation exercised its
rights to preferred stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company into 1,929,012 shares of VitalWorks
common stock. The shares of common stock were issued on March 2, 2001.

In 2000, the Company received notes receivable of approximately $6.6 million from certain then-directors
of the Company related to the exercise of stock options. In addition, the Company received 112,500 shares of
its common stock into treasury in exchange for the grant of a license agreement for one of the Company’s
products.

L. Segment Information

The Company has identified two reportable operating segments: software licenses and system sales, and
maintenance and services. Software license fees and system revenues are derived from the sale of software
product licenses and computer hardware. Maintenance and services revenues come from providing ongoing
product support, training and transaction processing services.

The Company’s president and chief executive officer evaluates performance based on measures of
segment revenues, gross profit and company-wide operating results. Employee headcount and operating costs
and expenses are managed by functional areas, rather than by revenue segments. Moreover, the Company does
not account for or report to the president and CEQ its assets or capital expenditures by segments.

The accompanying statements of operations and related notes disclose the financial information of the
Company’s reportable segments for the three years ended December 31, 2002,

The Company markets its products and services primarily to three types of physician practices:
ambulatory imaging centers and radiology practices, as well as anesthesiology practices; large general and
emergency medicine practices, such as physician networks, clinics and management service organizations that
include ten or more doctors; and small group practices of fewer than ten doctors that serve a local community,
including ophthalmology, dermatology and general medicine practices.
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M. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a tabulation of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the two years ended
December 31, 2002:

Three Months Ended Year Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 December 31
(In thousands, except per share data)
2002
Total revenues ................. $ 28,208 $28,902 $28,656 $29,045 $114,811
Gross profit............. ... ... 21,070 21,319 20,899 20,804 84,092
Net income ............. $ 7,631(a) $ 8,299(a) § 4,135 $ 4,085 $ 24,150
Average number of shares
outstanding
Basic ... 39,136 43,865 43,284 43,354 41,592
Diluted ..................... 47,211 49,690 50,385 47,727 48,850
Earnings per share
Basic ......... ... .o L $ 619 $ 0.28 $§ §.10 $ 06.69 $ .58
Diluted ..................... $ 6.1 $ 0.17 $ 0.08 $ 0.069 $ 049
2001
Total revenue .................. $ 25,678 $25,924 $27,259 (c) $28,192 $107,053
Gross profit. ........... ... ... 19,213 19,464 21,753 (c¢) 20,955 81,385
Loss from continuing operations ..  (13,672) (b) (4,877) (1,668) (c) (2,219)(d) (22,436)
Loss from discontinued operations . . (5,384) (5,384)
Netloss .........ccnnn. $(19,056)  $(4,877) $(1,668) $(2,219) $(27,820)
Average number of shares
outstanding
Basic and diluted . ............ 35,406 37,202 38,327 38,907 37,477
Earnings (loss) per share — basic
and diluted
Continuing operations . ........ $ (0.39) $ (0.13) $ (0.04) $ (0.06) $ (0.60)
Discontinued operations . ...... (0.15) (0.14)

$ (0.54) $ (0.13) $ (0.04) $ (0.06) $ (0.74)

(a) In the June 2002 quarter and in July 2002, the Company received final payments from three former
directors satisfying their outstanding loans from VitalWorks, including interest. Consequently, the
Company recorded a credit of $6.0 million ($3.0 million each in the March and June quarters) reflecting
a complete reversal of the allowance for loan losses established in March 2001, and related interest
income of $1.1 million ($.5 million and $.6 million in the March and June quarters, respectively). The
June quarter also reflects a savings of $.5 million in connection with the early termination of an office
lease for a facility closed in March 2001.

{b) In the quarter, the Company recognized impairment charges and incurred other nonrecurring costs of
$7.7 million consisting primarily of the $6.0 million provision for loan losses, $.9 million for unused equity
financing, and retention bonuses of $.4 million for terminated employees.

(¢) In the quarter, the Company recognized $1.6 million of EDI transaction revenues, and recovered certain
EDI processing costs and legal fees of $1.0 million in connection with the settlement of a contract dispute
with an EDI supplier.

(d) In the quarter, the Company incurred and accrued settlement costs, including legal fees, of $1.4 million
in connection with a legal proceeding.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Board of Directors and Stockholders
VitalWorks Inc.

The audits referred to in our report dated January 20, 2003, February 27, 2003 for Note H, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of VitalWorks Inc., and Subsidiaries, which is contained in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K, included the audits of the schedule listed under Item 15(a) (2). This financial statement schedule
is the responsibility of the Company’s management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial
statement schedule based on our audits. '

In our opinion, such schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
BDO Seidman, LLP

New York, New York
January 20, 2003
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ITEM 15{(a)(2). Financial Statement Schedule

VITALWORKS INC.

SCHEDULE II —
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged Balance at
Beginning Costs and to Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts  Deductions Period
(in thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts, Returns

and Discounts

Year ended December 31,2002........... $ 1,800 1,371 1,444(a) (2,715)(b) $ 1,900

Year ended December 31,2001........... 1,936 2,296 900(a) (3,332)(b) 1,800

Year ended December 31, 2000........... 3,183 1,883 (3,130)(b) 1,936
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Year ended December 31, 2002........... $23,001 10,546(d) (8,276) (e) $25,271

Year ended December 31, 2001 ........... 16,495 6,506 (c) 23,001

Year ended December 31,2000........... 16,495(¢) 16,495
Allowance for Notes Receivables From

Former Directors

Year ended December 31,2002........... $ 6,000 $(6,000) (f)

Year ended December 31, 2001........... 6,000 6,000

Year ended December 31, 2000. ..........

(a) Charged to revenues

(b) Write-offs, returns and discounts, net of recoveries

(c) Net operating loss carryforwards

(d) Net operating loss carryforwards relating to the exercise of employee stock options, and other adjust-
ments of $565

(e) Recogniticn of deferred tax assets

(f) Credit due to change in accounting estimate

All financial statement schedules not listed are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested
information is shown in the financial statements of the registrant or in the accompanying notes.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized
on this 27th day of March, 2003.

VitalWorks Inc.

By: /s/ MICHAEL A. MANTO

Michael A. Manto
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ JOSEPH M. WALSH

Joseph M. Walsh
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Joseph M. Walsh and Michael A. Manto, and each of them, his true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution for him and in his name, place
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and
all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as
he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or
any of them, or his or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOSEPH M. WALSH President, Chief Executive Officer =~ March 27, 2003
Joseph M. Walsh and Chairman of the Board of
Directors (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ MICHAEL A. MANTO Executive Vice President, Chief March 27, 2003
Michael A. Manto Financial Officer and Director

(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s/ STEPHEN N. KAHANE M.D., M.S. Chief Strategy Cfficer, Vice March 27, 2003
Stephen N. Kahane M.D., M.S. Chairman and Director
/s/ KENNETH R. ADAMS Director : March 27, 2003

Kenneth R. Adams

/s/ STEPHEN J. DENELSKY Director March 27, 2003
Stephen J. DeNelsky

/s/ DAVID B. SHEPHERD Director March 27, 2003
David B. Shepherd
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Joseph M. Walsh, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of VitalWorks Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ JOSEPH M. WALSH

Joseph M. Walsh
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Date: March 27, 2003
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I, Michael A. Manto, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of VitalWorks Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ MICHAEL A. MANTO

Michael A. Manto
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

Date: March 27, 2003
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